
 
 

 
 
 
10 January 2017 
 
 
To: All Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board  

 
The above members are requested to attend the:  
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Wednesday, 18 January 2017 at 3.00 pm 
in Committee Room A, Town Hall, Blackpool 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

 Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in 
doing so state:  
 
(1) the type of interest concerned; and 
 
(2) the nature of the interest concerned 
 
If any member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact 
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting. 
 

2  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 19 OCTOBER 2016  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 To agree the minutes of the last meeting held on 19 October 2016 as a true and correct 
record. 
 

3  STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING GROUP (SCG) UPDATE  (Pages 7 - 14) 
 

 To update the Board on the activity of the Strategic Commissioning Group since the last 
meeting.  
 

4  BETTER CARE FUND SIX MONTH UPDATE  (Pages 15 - 20) 
 

 To receive an update on the progress in the last six month towards the Better Care 
Fund.  
 
 

Public Document Pack



5  PAN-LANCASHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS (Pages 21 
- 44) 
 

 To consider a report on proposals for future Pan-Lancashire Health and Wellbeing 
Governance Arrangements 
 

6  LANCASHIRE AND SOUTH CUMBRIA CHANGE PROGRAMME AND SUSTAINABILITY 
AND TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME UPDATE  (Pages 45 - 52) 
 

 To receive a report updating the Board on the Lancashire and South Cumbria Change 
Programme.  
 

7  REVIEW OF PARTNERSHIPS AND FORUMS  (Pages 53 - 58) 
 

 To consider proposals for rationalising the governance and meeting arrangements of 
the Council’s partnerships and other statutory boards. 
 

8  UPDATE ON 0-5 CHILDREN'S PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES (ENHANCED HEALTH VISITING 
MODEL) 2017-2018  (Pages 59 - 64) 
 

 To update the Health and Wellbeing Board on the 0-5 Children’s Public Health Services 
(Enhanced Health Visiting Model) 2017-18. 
 

9  CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S EMOTIONAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
TRANSFORMATION PLAN  (Pages 65 - 70) 
 

 To receive an overview and update on progress with regard to the ‘Children and Young 
People’s Emotional Health and Wellbeing Transformational Plan 2015/ 2020’. 
 

10  FORWARD PLAN  (Pages 71 - 78) 
 

 To consider the draft Forward Plan for the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 

11  DATE OF FUTURE MEETINGS   
 

 To note the dates of future meetings as follows: 
 
1 March 2017 
19 April 2017 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Venue information: 
 
First floor meeting room (lift available), accessible toilets (ground floor), no-smoking building. 
 

Other information: 
 

For queries regarding this agenda please contact Lennox Beattie, Executive and Regulatory 
Manager, Tel: 01253 477157, e-mail lennox.beattie@blackpool.gov.uk 
 

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the 
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk. 
 

 

http://www.blackpool.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 19 OCTOBER 2016 
 
 

Present:  
 
Councillor Cain, Cabinet Secretary (Resilient Communities), Blackpool Council 
 
Councillor Clapham, Opposition Group Member, Blackpool Council 
Councillor Collett, Blackpool Council 
Roy Fisher, Chairman, Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group 
Eddy Jackson, Blackpool Healthwatch Representative 
Phil Jones, Area Group Manager, Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service 
Dr Arif Rajpura, Director of Public Health, Blackpool Council 
Dr Leanne Rudnick, GP Member, Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group  
 
In Attendance:  
Venessa Beckett, Corporate Development and Policy Officer, Blackpool Council 
Lennox Beattie, Executive and Regulatory Manager, Blackpool Council 
Matthew Burrow, Head of Corporate Assurance, Blackpool, Fylde and Wyre Hospital Trust 
Merle Davies, Director, Blackpool Centre for Early Child Development 
Nicky Dennison, Senior Public Health Practitioner 
Lynn Donkin, Public Health Specialist 
Steven Garner, Healthwatch Blackpool Service Manager 
Suzanne Gilman, Speciality Registrar- Public Health, Blackpool Council 
Paul Greenwood, Interim Chief Executive, Blackpool Council for Voluntary Services 
 
Apologies: 
David Bonson, Chief Executive Officer, Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group 
Delyth Curtis, Director of People, Blackpool Council 
Dr Amanda Doyle, Chief Clinical Officer, Blackpool Clinical Commissioning 
Jane Higgs, Director of Operations and Delivery, NHS England 
Sue Moore, Chief Operating Officer, Lancashire Care NHS Foundation Trust 
Karen Smith, Deputy Director of People (Adult Services), Blackpool Council 
 
1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest on this occasion.  
 
2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 7 SEPTEMBER 2016 
 
The Board considered the minutes of the last meeting held on the 7 September 2016. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on the 7 September 2016 be approved and signed by 
the Chairman as a correct record.  
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



MINUTES OF HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 19 OCTOBER 2016 
 
 

3 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT 
 
The Board considered the Public Health annual report 2015 which presented to the Board 
the Director of Public Health’s independent assessment of local health needs, determinants 
and concerns. 
 
Mrs Lynn Donkin gave a brief presentation outlining the four key areas addressed in the 
report namely progress on last year’s recommendations, protecting health, improving 
health and healthcare. 
 
In terms of the progress on last year’s recommendations, Mrs Donkin reminded members 
that the recommendations had been based around the Due North report on health equity in 
the North West. A number of these recommendations including the Blackpool Alcohol 
Inquiry, the Better Start programme, Blackpool Housing Company and the Community 
farm/shop had subsequently been integrated into the updated Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy. 
 
Mrs Donkin highlighted a number of successes in protecting health including the 
introduction of a rating system for tattooing and body-piercing and the improvements in 
bathing water quality. She then highlighted two areas for further work the take up of pre-
school boosters and the take up of flu vaccination for health care professionals. 
 
Mrs Donkin then outlined progress in terms of improving health noting that an update on 
the Healthy Weight Strategy was included elsewhere on the agenda and highlighted that 
further recommendations were outlined to build further on the successes of the Tobacco 
Control Strategy. 
 
Mrs Donkin then briefly outlined the areas covered by the healthcare area of the report 
noting that the Board received regular updates on the New Models of Care had already 
been received by the Board.  
 
Resolved: 
 

1. To receive the Public Health Annual Report 2015. 
 

2. To endorse the recommendations made in the report namely: 
 

i. That NHS England/Public Health England should lead work to improve the take up of 
the second dose of the MMR vaccine. 
 

ii. The Clinical Commissioning Group should take a lead role in the coordination and 
planning of activities to promote take up of seasonal flu locally. 
 

iii. That Partner organisations and the local business community be encouraged to 
follow the Council’s lead in taking action to promote healthier weight and consider 
adopting their own Declarations on Healthier Weight. 
 

Page 2



MINUTES OF HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 19 OCTOBER 2016 
 
 

iv. That Organisations across the town should continue to take a multi-faceted 
approach to reducing rates of smoking in pregnancy. 
 

v. Public health staff should continue to work with the NHS to maximise opportunities 
in the prevention agenda as a key part of New Models of Care. 
 

vi. That the Council’s Public Health Team should undertake a health equity audit for the 
Health Checks programme to identify opportunities to improve the performance, 
quality and outcomes of the local programme. 

 
4 HEALTHY WEIGHT STRATEGY UPDATE 
 
The Board received an update on the Healthy Weight Strategy from Mrs Lynn Donkin, Public 
Health Specialist, and Mrs Nicky Dennison, Senior Public Health Practitioner on the 
implementation of the Healthy Weight Strategy. 
 
Mrs Dennison highlighted key areas of the implementation of the strategy since December 
2015 in particular that Blackpool Council had adopted the Local Authority Declaration on 
Healthier Weight, becoming the first authority in the country to do so. She equally 
highlighted the implementation of Healthy Vending Guidelines and healthier catering.  
 
It was noted several local pieces of work had featured as good practice case studies in 
national documents most notably the giving up loving pop (GULP) campaign.  
 
The Board noted the recent release by the government the National Child Obesity Strategy.  
The strategy included 14 areas for action and it was agreed that further work be undertaken 
to consider how the Healthy Weight Strategy could address these opportunities once 
further information had been received. 
 
Mrs Dennison then outlined key next steps for the new year including further campaigns 
around healthy lunch boxes and fizzy drinks and engagement with partners including 
headteachers of schools.  
 
Board members expressed concern that many of the initiatives were not being implemented 
by partners. In order to address this concern members agreed that a summit on healthy 
weight be organised where stakeholders could receive assistance and guidance and sign up 
to a number of initiatives. The Board agreed to consider in the future scrutiny of partners 
who had not undertaken to assist in the delivery of the strategy.  
 
Resolved: 
 
1. To  note  the updates on: 
 

progress with the implementation of the Healthier Weight Strategy 
 
The government’s recently released National Child Obesity Strategy: A Plan for Action 
(August 2016).  

Page 3



MINUTES OF HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 19 OCTOBER 2016 
 
 

 
2. To organise a multi-agency summit to share best practice with partners including 

Academy schools.  
 
5 HEALTHWATCH BLACKPOOL PRIORITIES SURVEY AND 2016/17 WORKPLAN REPORT 
 
The Board received the Healthwatch Priorities Survey and Work plan for 2016/17. 
 
Mr Steven Garner, Healthwatch Blackpool Service Manager, presented the work plan and 
the survey to members. He highlighted the identification of 5 key areas namely: 
GP Surgeries, Emergency Services, Adult Mental Health, Blackpool Hospital 
and Care Homes. He then explained the responses had therefore resulted in a work plan as 
follows: 
 
July and August:  Care Home reviews 
September and October:  Blackpool Hospital 
November and December:  Adult Mental Health Services 
January and February:  GP Surgeries 
March and April:  Emergency Services (including Accident and Emergency,               

blue light services and 111) 
 
In response to questions from the Board Mr Garner and Mr Eddy Jackson, Healthwatch 
representative confirmed that they felt the responses to the consultation exercise had been 
representative but had hoped to learn from the experience for the future and improve the 
response rate. The Chairman suggested that board partners could be a good source of 
information as to ways to potentially increase the number of responses to consultation in 
the future.  
 
The Board considered that the work plan appeared to be suitable for purpose and appeared 
to address the areas of greatest concern.  
 
Resolved: 
 

1. To note the report at Appendix 5a and its findings. 
 

2. To agree that all future reports consider how the work of Healthwatch Blackpool can 
assist with the aims and duties of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 

3. To encourage board partners to share best practice in consultation with Blackpool 
Healthwatch. 
 

4. To receive regular updates on the work of Blackpool Healthwatch initially on a 
biannual basis.  

 
 
 
 

Page 4



MINUTES OF HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 19 OCTOBER 2016 
 
 

6 BLACKPOOL BETTER START UPDATE 
 
The Board received a presentation on the operation of the Blackpool Better Start initiative 
from Merle Davies, Director, Blackpool Centre for Early Child Development. 
 
In the first year of delivery Blackpool Better Start interventions had benefited nearly 2,000 
children and families, and over 600 members of the early years workforce. 
 
The Blackpool Centre for Early Child Development has been heavily involved in the re-
commissioning of the 0-19 Health Pathway and had been working with the Council’s Public 
Health team to ensure that the early years element provided to families is high quality 
support in the mandated, universal and targeted offer. The team are working with South 
London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust on the Enhanced Healthy Child Pathway 
(ECHP), this work enables early years professionals to have the opportunity to share positive 
work and challenges and develop together the vision of the future pathway. 
 
The partnership had also worked on a Perinatal Mental Health Pathway for Blackpool. The 
Maternal Mental Health Alliance has funding for three years to develop tools which can be 
used to evaluate pathways and services which will improve mental health outcomes for 
mothers, and infants during pregnancy and the first year after birth. Currently the team are 
working closely with the University of Michigan to be the first place in the UK to deliver 
‘Survivor Mum’s’ and working with University of Birmingham to evaluate its for further use 
in the UK.  The partnership had also investigated the implementation of the PAUSE 
programme working with mothers who had previously had children taken into care.  
 
Resolved:  
 
To note the presentation on the Better Start programme.  
 
7 FORWARD PLAN 
 
The Board considered the draft forward plan for forthcoming agendas, which would enable 
the Board to strategically plan its future agendas and ensure that items were relevant to the 
Board’s priorities.  
 
The Board noted that it had already agreed under Minute Item 5 to receive an update on 
the work of Blackpool Healthwatch. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the Health and Wellbeing Board Forward Plan as set out in Appendix 9a, to the 
agenda. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



MINUTES OF HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 19 OCTOBER 2016 
 
 

8 DATE OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
To note the dates of future meetings as follows: 
 

 30 November 2016 

 18 January 2017 

 1 March 2017 

 19 April 2017 

 
 
 
  
  
  
Chairman 
  
(The meeting ended at 5.15pm ) 
  
Any queries regarding these minutes, please contact: 
Lennox Beattie Executive and Regulatory Manager 
Tel: 01253 477157 
E-mail: lennox.beattie@blackpool.gov.uk 

Page 6



Report to: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD  
 

Relevant Officer: Del Curtis, Director of People 

Relevant Cabinet Member: 
 

Cllr Graham Cain, Cabinet Secretary (Resilient Communities) 

Date of Decision/ Meeting: 
 

18 January 2017 

 

STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING GROUP (SCG) UPDATE 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To update the Board on the activity of the Strategic Commissioning Group since the 
last meeting.  
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 To receive a verbal update from the meeting on 4 January 2017.  
 

2.2 To note the minutes of the last meeting on 20 October 2016 at Appendix 3(a). 
 

2.3 To note the main actions arising from the work of the group. 
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

The SCG is a sub-group of the Board, which is responsible for overseeing the 
integration and alignment of commissioning across the CCG and Council. It has a duty 
to update the Board on activity against its work programme and future planned 
activity. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the 
Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 No alternative options. 
 

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 The relevant Council priority is Priority Two:  ‘Communities: Creating stronger 
communities and increasing resilience’. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



5.0 Background Information 
 

5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Items discussed at the meeting on 4 January include: 
 

 Better Care Fund – Quarter 2 monitoring has been submitted to NHS England. 
Details of the requirements of the BCF 2017/19 were not available but 
expected in January 2017. A report will be brought to the HWB in January. 
 

 Community Therapy redesign – As part of the development of Enhanced 
Primary Care (EPC), Community Therapy services in Blackpool have been 
reviewed to deliver new models of care focusing on rehabilitation. As part of 
the new service specification the team will have a referral criteria embedded 
into this which reflects the new focus of rehabilitation. It is increasingly 
acknowledged that effective rehabilitation delivers better outcomes and 
improved quality of life and has the potential to reduce health inequalities 
and make significant cost savings across the health and care system. The new 
model is being evaluated and a report will be brought to a future meeting. 
 

 Reablement services update – The ARC service is an integrated Health and 
Social Care service, supported by staff from the Council and the Trust with the 
Council holding the CQC registration. In April of this year, the CCG and Trust 
disinvested in the Nurse Led service in Blackpool to focus on delivering a 
more intensive service from one site and directly routing more people home 
from hospital to receive support. The new service is performing well, with a 
positive use of the clinically enhanced beds and good outcomes for patients 
being delivered.   
 

 Hub/Wish service review – The Young Person’s under 18 Harm Reduction 
Service for Risk Taking Behaviour (Hub: Wish) is undergoing a commissioning 
review to inform the future delivery model for young people’s non-clinical 
sexual health and drug and alcohol treatment in Blackpool from 1st April 
2017.  
 

 Mental Health Action Plan – a new action plan has been developed to follow 
on from the previous plan which expired in 2016. The new plan focuses on 
prevention as well as treatment. 
 

 Sexual health action plan – a new sexual health plan has been developed to 
follow on from the previous plan which expired last year. The new plan 
focuses on teenage conception, abortions and repeat abortions; STI’s and re-
infections; National Chlamydia Screening Programme (NCMP) ages 15-24; HIV 
and late diagnoses; sexual exploitation, violence and abuse (inequalities). 
 

Page 8



 Talbot and Brunswick Family Hub pilot – Children’s Centres are being 
expanded to create a new local infrastructure of Family Hubs by working with 
partners to use resources more efficiently. The Local Authority Children’s 
Centre offer to support children and young people as they grow up will be 
extended to include the whole community, families, young people, vulnerable 
adults and elders, by enhancing the current offer to include further evening 
and weekend access. 
 

 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 

 List of Appendices 
 

 Appendix 3(a) - Notes from SCG meeting October 2016 
 

6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

None 

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

None 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None 

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

None 

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 None  
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 None 
 
 
 

Page 9



13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 
 

None 

 

Page 10



Appendix 3(a) 

1 

 

Strategic Commissioning Group 
Notes and Actions 

19 October 2016, 9.30 – 11.30am  
Conference Room 3E, Bickerstaffe House 

 

Present 

 
 

Delyth Curtis, Director of People (Director of Children’s Services), Blackpool Council  

Dr Arif Rajpura, Director of Public Health, Blackpool Council  

Karen Smith, Director of Adult Services, Blackpool Council  

Val Raynor, Head of Commissioning, Blackpool Council  

Merle Davies, Director Better Start, NSPCC  

Judith Mills, Public Health Specialist, Blackpool Council 

Helen Lammond-Smith,  Head of Commissioning, Blackpool CCG 

Also 
present 

Venessa Beckett, Corporate Development Officer, Blackpool Council  

Jayne Bentley, Care Bill Implementation and Better Care Fund Project Lead, Blackpool Council  

Laura Watts, Accountant, Blackpool Council 

Andrew Foot, Head of Housing, Blackpool Council 

Chrissie Chesters, Commissioning Manager, Blackpool Council 

Les Marshall, Head of Adult Social Care, Blackpool Council  

Gill Nixon-Smith, Adult Social Care Service Manager, Blackpool Council 

Jeannie Harrop, Commissioning Manager, BCCG 

Ian Ellwood, Blackpool Teaching Hospital Trust 

Apologies 

 

David Bonson, Chief Operating Officer, Blackpool CCG 

Pauline Wigglesworth, HeadStart Programme Lead, Blackpool Council 

Steve Thompson, Director of Resources, Blackpool Council  

Dr Mark Johnston, Deputy Chief Operating Officer, Blackpool CCG 

Lynn Donkin, Public Health Specialist, Blackpool Council  

Liz Petch, Public Health Specialist, Blackpool Council  

Nikki Evans, Superintendent, Lancs Constabulary 

  

1. 

  

Welcome, introductions and apologies.  

Del welcomed everyone to the meeting and apologies were noted.  

2.  

 

Minutes and actions from the last meeting (July) 

Evaluation  

A group has been established to focus on developing a joined up approach to evaluation across the 

various transformational projects across Blackpool. The group will meet after the JSNA Strategic 

Group and will involve reps from all three Big Lottery programmes. 

Early Action Commissioning Review  

The CCG have undertaken lots of work around the shortage of mental health beds highlighted by the 

early action team. Commissioners have met with police regarding the service directory and 

Page 11



Appendix 3(a) 

2 

 

establishing pathways. One of issues identified is not enough outreach, LCFT are enhancing this 

offer. There is an identified gap in services for people who sit below thresholds. Helen Lammond-

Smith advised that East Lancashire are developing a vulnerable adult service to support people who 

present in crisis but are not unwell enough to be admitted to hospital. 

Fire as health asset  

Evaluation of the programme needs to be set up. 

Health visiting 

Public health had met with Better Start and the hospital trust, a transition plan to look at staffing 

was in development, it had been agreed to develop an enhanced health visiting model, and there 

would be a small funding gap although few staff would be affected. Better Start would be working 

with health visitors to design the programme, a communications plan would be needed and 

consideration given regarding how the new service would interact with other services. 

Two deferred items would be added to the next agenda: 

 Integrating health and care services for children 

 Intermediate Care update 

3. Domestic abuse 

Chrissie Chesters attended to present a report which updated the current position regarding work on 

domestic abuse: a strategy has been developed and a partnership board established which is 

developing an integrated public service model to co-ordinate work, pool budgets and challenge 

performance in this area. 

Preparation for JTAI (inspection) is underway; the inspection would conduct deep dives into 7 cases, 

focusing on particular points in these children’s journeys and their experiences of living with 

domestic abuse. A mock inspection found problems with getting sufficient information to give to 

inspectors. 

Domestic abuse cases are not reducing, currently 80+ children are in MARAC; it should be exception 

cases. An inspection could occur between September and March and any concerns found could 

trigger a full inspection of all children’s social care. 

A number of evidence reviews are ongoing; we are working with the Tavistock Centre to understand 

the particular issue in Blackpool regarding dysfunctional relationships; and we are trying to identify 

examples of good practice in this area. 

4. Housing Plan for the Ageing Population 

Andrew Foot presented an update on the Housing Plan for the Ageing Population; this is a high level 

plan looking at the housing issues of the ageing population, how services work together, and 

improving the housing offer. Housing services can contribute to meeting some of needs of acute 

health and social care services. 

A detailed action plan is in development with further work to be done around the commissioned 

contract for the extra care schemes; work is also underway to explore how the new prevention and 

Page 12



Appendix 3(a) 

3 

 

welfare visits can support existing Council services. 

In light of ongoing budget discussions it was agreed that the stakeholder consultation would be 

paused until the budget decisions had been made. It was also suggested that the CCG would be 

interested in the strategy as it fits with their neighbourhood work, and consideration would be given 

to the timings of the democratic process. 

Andy also updated on a new pilot initiative that is being developed in conjunction with Fulfilling Lives 

based on the ‘Housing First’ model used in the US. Historically services have tended to work with 

people with the most complex needs by getting them into hostel accommodation then moving onto 

more independent accommodation. Many people don’t want to be in a hostel and the environment 

is not suitable to support recovery from drug/alcohol issues or ill mental health. The Housing First 

model places people in a tenancy and brings whatever services they need. It has not yet been agreed 

who will provide the housing. Fulfilling Lives have agreed through their board to fund two workers.  

http://england.shelter.org.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0008/145853/GP_Briefing_Housing_First.pdf 

http://www.homeless.org.uk/facts/our-research/housing-first-in-england-evaluation-of-nine-

services 

A successful model has been implemented in Preston with people sharing tenancies and taking part 

in meaningful activity to foster a sense of purpose.  

Karen Smith advised of a similar theme emerging for vulnerable adults with mental health problems; 

people are supported with accommodation and given support then as soon as they are settled we 

ask them to move elsewhere, uprooting them and removing stability and community connections 

that have been established. 

5. Better Care Fund 

Jayne Bentley advised that the 2016/17 BCF submission had been approved on 26 July. A monitoring 

group has been set up to review the schemes in the BCF in terms of function and value for money, 

which will enable effective monitoring against the national performance framework. The group are 

trying to work BCF outcomes into contracts to evaluate if the schemes are delivering what they are 

meant to. Some of the schemes have income pressures but others are OK, although a general 

overspend is forecast.  

A six month update is on the agenda at the January HWB. 

6.  Delayed Transfers of Care 

A presentation on delayed transfers of care (DTOC) was given by health, Council and commissioners 

which described the complex and dynamic nature of the issue. There are regional and seasonal 

variations in the figures, which can also be unreliable due to issues with reporting; however the 

seasonal peak of Christmas/New Year 2015/16 lasted until August. 

A lengthy discussion followed; Karen Smith advised that it is important that we understand the local 

Page 13

http://england.shelter.org.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0008/145853/GP_Briefing_Housing_First.pdf
http://www.homeless.org.uk/facts/our-research/housing-first-in-england-evaluation-of-nine-services
http://www.homeless.org.uk/facts/our-research/housing-first-in-england-evaluation-of-nine-services


Appendix 3(a) 

4 

 

picture and have an accurate picture of the issues. 

A number of reasons were given for DTOC; from a hospital perspective the increasing complexity of 

cases is a contributory factor along with delays in social care assessments, discharge planning not 

starting soon enough and needs being assessed in the wrong environment.  

Further issues were identified as people from outside of the local area choosing to stay in Blackpool 

and in relation to the complexity of need, around 80% of people attract a higher rate of care package 

and have other health related needs included with the care package. There are also workforce issues 

in that providers cannot recruit the appropriate skills for the hourly rate they can afford to pay. 

Commissioners are working with providers to address capacity and make more beds available for 

high end need. 

It was highlighted that we need a Blackpool solution to the issue, not an organisational solution, to 

prevent the issue of ‘who should pay for beds’ from being an issue – from the patient’s perspective 

the transition should be seamless. 

The group commented that the discussion had been very useful and the issues raised would be 

explored further. 

 Next meeting: 

4 January 2017 

9.30-12.00pm  

3A Bickerstaffe House 

 
 
 
 

Page 14



Report to: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD  
 

Relevant Officer: Jayne Bentley (Care Bill Implementation and Better Care 
Fund Project Lead) 
Janet Watson (Better Care Fund Accountant) 

Relevant Cabinet Member  Councillor Graham Cain 

Date of Meeting 18 January 2017 

 

BLACKPOOL BETTER CARE FUND  
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To provide the Board with a mid-year (six month) update for the Better Care Fund 
(BCF) 2016/ 2017 (Appendix 4(a) to inform the Board of NHS England (NHSE) 
requirements for the BCF 2017/ 2019 (this is not available at the time of preparing 
this report and will be presented via PowerPoint at the meeting). 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 To note content of the report. 
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

The BCF pooled budget is a statutory requirement under the amended NHS Act 2006, 
including the requirement to submit quarterly reports in accordance with NHS 
England’s policy framework.  
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 The submission of a BCF plan for 2016/ 2017, along with quarterly reporting 
templates is a statutory requirement under the amended NHS Act 2006.   
 

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is: Priority Two – Communities: Creating stronger 
communities and increasing resilience. 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



5.0 Background Information 
 

5.1 The August 2013 Spending Review established the BCF to deliver better outcomes 
and greater efficiencies through the integration of health and social care.  It requires 
CCGs and LAs in every area to pool budgets and to agree an integrated spending plan 
for how they will use their BCF allocation.    
 

5.2 Local partners are required to develop a joint spending plan that is approved by NHS 
England as a condition of the NHS contribution to the BCF being released into pooled 
budgets. 
 

5.3 In developing BCF plans for 2016/ 2017, local partners were required to develop and 
agree through their relevant Health and Wellbeing Board: 
 

 a short, jointly agreed narrative plan including details of how they are 
addressing the national conditions; 

 confirmed funding contributions from each partner organisation including 
arrangements in relation to funding within the BCF for specific purposes; 

 a scheme level spending plan demonstrating how the fund will be spent; 

 quarterly plan figures for the national metrics. 
 

5.4 Local partners were required to confirm mandatory and additional funding 
contributions.  This includes confirmation that individual elements of the funding 
have been used in accordance with their purpose as set out in the policy framework: 

  

 Disabled Facilities Grant – as in 2015/ 2016 the DFG will be allocated through 
the BCF;  

 Care Act 2014 monies – the BCF allocation to the CCG includes monies to 
support the implementation of the Care Act 2014 and other policies.  This 
funding is not new but has been uplifted from monies made available through 
last year’s BCF.  The direction from NHS England has been simplified and it is 
expected that this funding will focus mainly on supporting informal family 
carers; 

 Former Carer’s Break Funding – the BCF includes funds previously earmarked 
for NHS replacement care so that carers can have a break; and 

 Reablement funding – as in 2015/ 2016, the BCF includes NHS funding to 
maintain current reablement capacity across statutory, community, 
independent and voluntary sectors to help people regain their independence 
and reduce the need for ongoing care. 

 
5.5 Local partners were required to articulate a plan for meeting the following national 

conditions: 
 

Page 16



i. BCF plans to be jointly agreed; 
ii. Maintain provision of social care services; 

iii. Agreement for the delivery of seven day services across health and social care 
to prevent unnecessary non-elective (physical and mental health) admissions 
to acute settings; 

iv. Better data sharing between health and social care, based on NHS number; 
v. Ensure a joint approach to assessments and care planning, with an 

accountable professional when integrated packages are funded; 
vi. Agreement on the consequential impact of the changes on the providers that 

are predicted to be substantially affected by the plans; 
vii. Agreement to invest in NHS commissioned out-of-hospital services; 

viii. Agreement on a local action plan to reduce delayed transfers of care and 
improve patient flow. 

 
5.6 National conditions vii and viii above were new for 2016/ 2017.  New condition vii 

replaced the national payment-for-performance element of the 2015/ 2016 BCF, 
linked to delivering a reduction in non-elective admissions activity.  NHS England 
continued to ring-fence an element of the BCF and local areas were expected to 
consider putting an appropriate proportion of this into a local risk-sharing agreement 
as part of contingency planning in the event of excess emergency hospital activity.  
The ring-fenced element of the BCF in Blackpool is £3,619,475. 
 

5.7 The Policy Framework and Reporting Template for the BCF 2017/ 2019 was expected 
to be published in December 2016, however at the time of preparing this report 
(09/01/17) these have yet to be made available to local teams.  It is anticipated that 
the documents will be available before the end of January and they will be presented 
to the Board through a PowerPoint presentation. 
 

 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 

 List of Appendices 
 

 

 Appendix 4(a) - BCF 2016/ 2017 Q2 Monitoring Report 
 

 

6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

The legal framework for the BCF derives from the NHS Act 2006 (amended by the 
Care Act 2014), which requires that in each area the BCF is transferred into one or 
more pooled budgets, established under Section 75 and that plans are approved by 
NHS England in consultation with Department of Health (DH) and Department of 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG).  The Act also gives NHS England powers 
to attach additional conditions to the payment of the BCF to ensure that the policy 
framework is delivered through local plans.   
 

Page 17



7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

Not completed 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

Not completed 
 

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

Not completed. 

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 
 

Not completed. 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

Not completed. 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 Not completed. 
 

13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 
 

2016/17 Better Care Fund Policy Framework – January 2016 
 

Technical Guidance Annex 4: Better Care Fund Planning Requirements for 2016-17 - 
February 2016 
 

BCF Planning 2016-17Approach to regional assurance of Better Care Fund Plans – 
March 2016 
 

 

Page 18



Expenditure

Scheme no Scheme Name Scheme Type (see table below for descriptions) Area of Spend Commissioner
if Joint % 
NHS

if Joint % 
LA Provider Source of Funding

2016/17 
Expenditure (£)

2016/17 Total cost of 
schemes 2016/17 Forecast Outturn 2016/17 Variance 

BCF Element of 
forecast variance Variance Analysis

1 Rollout of care homes support scheme Improving healthcare services to care homes Continuing Care CCG NHS Community Provider CCG Minimum Contribution 225,453                225,453                            Meeting requested with CCG
2 Out of Hospital IV therapy service Personalised support/ care at home Community Health CCG NHS Community Provider CCG Minimum Contribution 248,706                248,636                            Meeting requested with CCG
3 Acute Visiting Service Personalised support/ care at home Community Health CCG Charity/Voluntary Sector CCG Minimum Contribution 137,496                136,000                            Meeting requested with CCG
4 High Intensity Users Intermediate care services Community Health CCG NHS Community Provider CCG Minimum Contribution 73,803                  73,378                              contract may be terminated and FOT could be £36689, awaiting final confirmation
5 Provide enabling care at home services Reablement services Community Health CCG Local Authority CCG Minimum Contribution 715,300                8,271,000                          Meeting requested with CCG
6 Single Point of access and care co‐ordination Integrated care teams Community Health CCG Charity/Voluntary Sector CCG Minimum Contribution 101,100                100,000                            Meeting requested with CCG

7 Community Equipment &adaptationsexisting plus Intermediate care services Community Health Joint 85.0% 15.0% Local Authority CCG Minimum Contribution 967,650                  967,650                               £964,650 ‐£3,000 ‐£3,000
Forecast underspend based on months 1‐6 actuals and assumed winter increase. Monitoring 
closely as greater savings were expected following a service review

7 Community Equipment &adaptationsexisting plus Intermediate care services Community Health Joint 85.0% 15.0% Local Authority Local Authority Social Services 626,000                626,000                            £626,000 £0
8 Vitaline  Intermediate care services Community Health CCG Local Authority CCG Minimum Contribution 687,480                955,000                            £975,000 £20,000 £14,000 Income pressure
9 Integrated Crisis and Rapid Response Integrated care teams Social Care CCG Local Authority CCG Minimum Contribution 567,171                790,000                            £820,000 £30,000 £22,000 Drop in Continuing Care income
10 Maintaining Eligibility Criteria  Personalised support/ care at home Social Care CCG Local Authority CCG Minimum Contribution 1,044,236            3,393,000                          £3,357,000 ‐£36,000 ‐£5,000 Vacancy savings
11 Reablement Services  Reablement services Social Care CCG Local Authority CCG Minimum Contribution 590,424                646,000                            £658,000 £12,000 £11,000 Staffing pressures
12 Intermediate Care model Intermediate care services Community Health Local Authority Local Authority Local Authority Social Services 516,002                516,002                            £516,002 £0
12 Intermediate Care model Intermediate care services Community Health CCG Local Authority Additional CCG Contribution 944,669                944,669                            £929,669 ‐£15,000 ‐£15,000 Vacant posts not yet recruited to as part of the new model of care

12 Intermediate Care model Intermediate care services Community Health CCG NHS Community Provider Additional CCG Contribution 1,076,832              1,076,832                            Meeting requested with CCG
13 Early Supported hospital Discharge Intermediate care services Social Care CCG Local Authority CCG Minimum Contribution 468,093                468,093                            £453,093 ‐£15,000 ‐£15,000 Additional income received towards Social Worker post

13 Early Supported hospital Discharge Intermediate care services Social Care Local Authority Local Authority Local Authority Social Services 96,326                    96,326                                 £96,326 £0 £0
14 Mental Health Services Personalised support/ care at home Mental Health CCG Local Authority CCG Minimum Contribution 503,478                503,478                            Meeting requested with CCG

14 Mental Health Services Personalised support/ care at home Mental Health Local Authority Local Authority Local Authority Social Services 133,000                  133,000                               £158,000 £25,000 £25,000 Staffing pressures
15 Dementia Services Personalised support/ care at home Mental Health CCG Local Authority CCG Minimum Contribution 245,673                224,000                            £227,000 £3,000 £3,000 Staffing pressures
16 Other Preventative Services Intermediate care services Social Care CCG Local Authority Additional CCG Contribution 65,715                  65,715                              £67,715 £2,000 £2,000 Staffing pressures
16 Other Preventative Services Intermediate care services Social Care Local Authority Local Authority Local Authority Social Services 24,000                  24,000                              £24,000 £0 £0
17 Carers support workers/grants Support for carers Community Health CCG Charity/Voluntary Sector CCG Minimum Contribution 126,375                125,000                            Meeting requested with CCG
18 Rapid Response  7 day working Community Health CCG NHS Community Provider CCG Minimum Contribution 456,794                832,718                            £832,718 £0 £0 Forecast breakeven
19 HD Team  Intermediate care services Community Health CCG NHS Community Provider CCG Minimum Contribution 128,397                37,913                              Meeting requested with CCG
20 Hospital Aftercare service (existing) Personalised support/ care at home Social Care CCG Charity/Voluntary Sector CCG Minimum Contribution 73,803                  73,000                              Meeting requested with CCG
21 Disabled Facilities and Social Capital Grants Personalised support/ care at home Social Care Local Authority Local Authority Local Authority Social Services 1,840,297            1,840,297                          £1,840,297 £0 £0 Forecast breakeven
22 Extensive Care Service Personalised support/ care at home Community Health CCG NHS Community Provider Additional CCG Contribution 826,901                826,901                            Meeting requested with CCG
22 Extensive Care Service Personalised support/ care at home Community Health CCG NHS Community Provider CCG Minimum Contribution 373,099                373,099                            Meeting requested with CCG
23 Support for Care Act Personalised support/ care at home Social Care CCG Local Authority CCG Minimum Contribution 606,600                606,600                            Meeting requested with CCG
24 GP Plus NEL scheme Personalised support/ care at home Primary Care CCG Primary Care CCG Minimum Contribution 1,858,241            1,858,241                          Meeting requested with CCG

25 Community Schemes aimed at NEL reduction and OOH Intermediate care services Community Health CCG NHS Community Provider CCG Minimum Contribution 303,300                  353,850                               Meeting requested with CCG
26 GP £5 per head (QIPP investment) Interrmediate care services Community Health CCG Primary Care CCG Minimum Contribution 875,000                  875,000                               Meeting requested with CCG
27 MH Rehab‐ Gloucester Avenue Integrated care teams Mental Health CCG Local Authority CCG Minimum Contribution 147,726                225,000                            £227,000 £2,000 £1,000 Staffing pressures
28 Learning Disabilities‐ Joint funded services Integrated care teams Social Care CCG Local Authority CCG Minimum Contribution 1,151,246            1,754,000                          £1,680,000 ‐£74,000 ‐£49,000 Vacant posts within serivce

29 Safeguarding Adults Personalised support/ care at home Social Care CCG Local Authority CCG Minimum Contribution 60,288                    420,000                               £577,000 £157,000 £23,000 Additional staffing and legal costs as a result of changes in the law re DOLS assessment

Total BCF 18,886,674          30,685,851                      

Awaiting information
Awaiting information

Awaiting information

BCF SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE 2016/17
QTR 2 MONITORING REPORT

Awaiting information
Awaiting information
Awaiting information
Awaiting information
Awaiting information
Awaiting information

Awaiting information

Awaiting information

Awaiting information

Awaiting information
Awaiting information

Awaiting information

Awaiting information

Awaiting information

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

Relevant Officer: Mark Towers, Director of Governance and Partnerships 

Relevant Cabinet Member:  
 

Councillor Graham Cain, Cabinet Secretary (Resilient 

Communities) 

Date of Meeting: 
 

18 January 2017  

 

PAN-LANCASHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING GOVERNANCE 
ARRANGEMENTS 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 Earlier in the year Lancashire Leaders Group agreed that work should be undertaken 
to move to a new model of Health and Wellbeing Board governance, in the form of a 
single Health and Wellbeing Board for Lancashire, with five local area health and 
wellbeing partnerships, reflecting the local area health economies across Lancashire. 
 

1.2 A Summit was held on 26 July 2016, which allowed existing Health and Wellbeing 
Board members from across Lancashire, to explore how their statutory 
responsibilities could be jointly delivered in line with the proposed model.  
Subsequently, joint proposals and terms of reference have been drafted for approval 
by each of the upper tier authorities in Lancashire. These are set out in this report 
which has been approved by the Executive at its meeting on the 15 December 2016. 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 
 

To note the proposals for a new pan-Lancashire model for Health and Wellbeing 
Board governance set out in this report. 
 

2.2 To note the draft terms of reference for the proposed Pan Lancashire Health and 
Wellbeing Board and Local Health and Wellbeing Partnerships, (Appendices 6(a) and 
6)b), which will be finalised during the shadow operation period and presented to the 
annual meeting of the Council  for formal adoption     
 

2.3 To note that the new pan-Lancashire model will operate in shadow form between 
January and March 2017 in accordance with the draft terms of reference  
 

2.4 To support the principles for the new pan-Lancashire model for Health and Wellbeing 
Board governance arrangements for adoption and  implementation from May 2017. 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

The recommendations will allow the further development of the model of Health and 
Wellbeing Board governance across Lancashire.  It will further implement and embed 
the joint working proposals.  
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 To continue with the current arrangements for Health and Wellbeing Boards.  
 

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is: “Communities: Creating stronger communities and 
increasing resilience” 
 

5.0 Background Information 
 

5.1 Health and Wellbeing Boards are a key element of the Health and Social Care Act 
2012 as a means to deliver improved strategic co-ordination across the NHS, social 
care, children’s services and public health. Health and Wellbeing Boards are required 
to assess the needs and assets of the local population through joint strategic needs 
assessment, produce a joint health and wellbeing strategy that addresses these 
needs and builds on any assets, influence commissioning plans of organisations and 
promote joint commissioning and integrated provision.   
 

5.2 Statutory responsibility for the provision of Health and Wellbeing Boards sits with 
upper tier authorities; which for Lancashire are Blackburn with Darwen Borough 
Council, Blackpool Council and Lancashire County Council.   
 

5.3 The health and wellbeing system is changing at both pan-Lancashire level and at a 
local delivery level, in line with the Five Year Forward View for the NHS, national 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) agenda and the Combined Authority 
approach for Lancashire. 
 

5.4 In light of these changes, the Leaders and Chief Executives from each of the 
Lancashire local authorities have worked together to design a new model for Health 
and Wellbeing Boards governance for the pan-Lancashire footprint.   

Page 22



5.5 The model reflects a need to ensure robust accountability of system changes linked 
to the Lancashire and South Cumbria Sustainability and Transformation Plan delivery 
and service reconfigurations and as such aligns itself to the delivery footprints for the 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan.  The agreed model, outlined both Appendices 
6b and 6c, takes the form of a single Health and Wellbeing Boards for the pan-
Lancashire footprint, with five local area health and wellbeing partnerships 
(LHWBPs), reflecting the local health economies across Lancashire (Pennine, Central, 
West, Morecambe Bay and Fylde Coast) 
 

5.6 The model has been designed to provide the strongest collective influence and 
governance across the new emerging health and wellbeing system. 
 

5.7 The first step to implementing the new governance model is for the upper tier 
authorities, who currently hold the statutory Health and Wellbeing Board duties, to 
develop a joint framework for delivering these responsibilities.  
 

5.8 A summit was held on 26 July 2016, with 64 delegates attending from across the 
Health and Wellbeing Boards.  Delegates were given an overview of the changing 
landscape for health and wellbeing and the future governance model that had been 
agreed through Lancashire Leaders.  Participants considered the statutory role and 
responsibilities of Health and Wellbeing Boards and how these duties could be 
delivered through the new model, in particular: 
 

 Governance and democratic influence 

 Promoting integration 

 Joint strategic needs assessments and health and wellbeing strategies 

 Membership 
 

5.9 Senior representatives from the three upper-tier authorities developed the 
recommendations from the Summit into a proposal for consideration by Lancashire 
Leaders.  This included draft terms of reference for a Pan Lancashire Health and 
Wellbeing Board and for the local area health and wellbeing partnerships (See 
Appendices 6(b) and 6(c)). 
 

5.10 
 

The proposals have been subject to legal appraisal, to ensure their lawfulness and 
were reported back to Lancashire Leaders on 18 November 2016.  The key points for 
consideration are highlighted overleaf. 
 

6.0 Key Issues and Risks 
 

 The key issues relating to the new model of Health and Wellbeing Board governance 
are as follows: 
 
 

Page 23



6.1 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies 
(JHWS) 
 

6.1.1 Under the new model it is proposed that a pan-Lancashire Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment/Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy be introduced with the inclusion of 
chapters for each of the five local areas, to highlight local priorities and assets. 
 

6.1.2 This will require the statutory duty for developing a Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment/Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy be delegated to the pan-Lancashire 
Health and Wellbeing Board, by the upper tier authorities, but in doing so there will 
be clear stipulations that local area needs and priorities be adequately reflected 
through appendices or chapters. 
 

6.1.3 The rationale for this is: 
 

 This work is already developed through the Lancashire and South Cumbria 
public health intelligence network, which includes representatives from 
Lancashire, Blackburn with Darwen and Blackpool 

 The Lancashire and South Cumbria intelligence group can jointly agree what 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment programme would be, they could lead 
across patch, with key topics/areas of focus being planned with engagement 
from all three statutory bodies 

 This will allow the identification of key pan-Lancashire issues, that would 
benefit from a coordinated approach, whilst recognising there are local 
distinctions which can be identified for delivery at the local footprint level 

 
6.2 Promoting Integration (including Better Care Fund) 

 
6.2.1 Feedback from the Summit recommended that: 

 

 There should be a common set of goals and ambitions for integration 

 There is a need for a pan-Lancashire strategic framework but local influence 
for local delivery 

 The Health and Wellbeing Board could “rise above” organisation boundaries 
and encourage what is right for people and the area - outcome focused, 
rather than organisational focus 

 
6.2.2 It is therefore, recommended that the statutory duty for promoting integration 

should sit with the pan-Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board on the proviso that 
the pan-Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board set out ambitions and principles for 
integration, which are implemented across all levels of delivery, including at locality 
and neighbourhood level where relevant– this would be developed through full 
engagement with all areas. 

Page 24



6.3.3 Better Care Fund 
Arrangements in relation to the development and approval of Better Care Fund (BCF) 
plans will be defined during 2017, when the future direction of travel of the Fund 
both from a national Government point of view and a Lancashire and South Cumbria 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan point of view is known and understood.  In 
considering this and feedback from the Summit the following recommendations are 
made: 
 

 That the development and sign off for Better Care Fund plans for 2017/18 be 
conducted under the current statutory Health and Wellbeing Board 
arrangements 

 That the framework for signing off Better Care Fund plans for 2018 onwards is 
reviewed, when agreement has been reached with regards to the operation 
of Better Care Fund within the Lancashire and South Cumbria Change 
Programme and the national direction of travel is confirmed 

 
6.4 Membership 

 
6.4.1 Feedback from the Summit suggested that: 

 

 Core Membership for the pan-Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board should 
be as small as possible to enable productive discussions to take place 

 A core membership should be prescribed for the local health and wellbeing 
partnerships, with the flexibility to co-opt other members as locally relevant 

 A balance of elected member, public sector, and voluntary and community 
sector representation was needed 

 Providers should be represented at the local area partnership level, rather 
than pan-Lancs. 

 
6.4.2 These views are reflected in the initial draft membership proposals included in the 

Appendices, although these are subject to further consideration. 
 

6.5 Governance and Democratic Influence (including terms of reference) 
 

6.5.1 In order to ensure that both the pan-Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Boards and the 
local health and wellbeing partnerships operate effectively, take meaningful 
decisions and have productive discussions, that decision making processes are robust 
and transparent and that public and  community engagement is key. 
 

 Terms of reference have been developed for the pan-Lancashire Health and 
Wellbeing Board and the five local health and wellbeing partnerships, in 
conjunction with legal representatives, to formalise the recommendations of 
the Health and Wellbeing Board Summit held in July 2016.  The draft terms of 

Page 25



reference are shown at Appendices 6b and 6c.  These will be finalised during 
the shadow phase and brought to each authority for decision as appropriate 

 

 Ways of working between the pan-Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board 
and the five local health and wellbeing partnerships will be considered during 
the shadow phase and reflected in the final terms of reference. 

 

 Chairmen/vice chairmen from the local health and wellbeing partnerships 
would give updates on behalf of their group to the pan-Lancashire Health and 
Wellbeing Board, and will be expected to report back to their groups on key 
issues emerging from the pan-Lancashire Board 

 
The Board and partnerships operate a named deputy system, to ensure decisions can 
be taken in the absence of formal members. 
 

7.0 Timescales for implementation 
 

 It is recommended that the new model be implemented from the start of the new 
municipal year. As such the following path to implementation is recommended. 
 

8.0 Review 
 

8.1 Once enacted, the approach will be reviewed after twelve months, with any 
proposals for change being brought back to the Lancashire Leaders for consideration, 
with any changes to be agreed by the three partner authorities. 
 

9.0 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 

10.0 List of Appendices 
 

 

 Appendix 5(a) - Proposed Timescales 
Appendix 5(b) - Draft Pan-Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board Terms of Reference 
Appendix 5(c) - Draft local health and wellbeing partnerships Terms of Reference 
 

11.0 Legal considerations 
 

11.1 There is a requirement under section 194 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012 
(“the Act”) for local authorities to establish Health and Wellbeing Boards. Health and 
Wellbeing Boards are governed under local government legislation and are regarded 
as ‘committees of the Council’ (section 102 Local Government Act 1972).       
 

11.2 
 
 

Although Health and Wellbeing Boards are ‘committees of the Council’ they may, if 
delegated, exercise Executive functions.  There is a duty on Health and Wellbeing 
Boards under the Act to encourage integrated working and gives responsibility for 

Page 26



developing the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy.  There are also other specific powers and responsibilities of Health and 
Wellbeing Boards in the Act and the in Local Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act 2007. 
 

11.3 Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 allows for two or more Local 
Authorities to exercise functions jointly through a joint committee and Section 198 of 
the Act allows two or more Health and Wellbeing Boards to make arrangements for 
any of their functions to be exercised jointly or by a sub-committee of the Boards. 
 

11.4 The pan-Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board will be required to comply with the 
above requirements under the Acts and the Local Authority (Public Health, Health 
and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013.  Each upper tier 
authority with statutory health and wellbeing functions must formally delegate 
specific functions to the newly established pan-Lancashire Health and Wellbeing 
Boards.  The establishment and membership of the pan-Lancashire Health and 
Wellbeing Board will be under section 194 of the Act.  The members of the Board will 
be required to comply with duties and restrictions relating to Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests under the Localism Act 2011.   
 

11.5 The arrangements and relationships between the pan-Lancashire Health and 
Wellbeing Board and the five local health and wellbeing partnerships relating to the 
exercise of the functions will need to be adequately reflected in the Terms of 
References of the Board and the Partnerships.   
 

12.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

12.1 Administrative support arrangements for the pan Lancashire Health and Wellbeing 
Board will be agreed between the upper tier authorities. 
 

12.2 
 

To date there has been input into the development of these proposals from legal, 
finance and public health departments within the three Councils.  It is anticipated 
that there will be a continued requirement for officer support from these 
departments for this programme of work. 
 

13.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

13.1 
 

None directly, although the work of the Health and Wellbeing Board in whatever 
arrangements will continue to be focussed on reducing health inequalities.  
 

14.0 Financial considerations: 
 

14.1 
 

There are no specific financial requirements associated with this report.  Any future 
implications associated with these arrangements will be presented to the Board 

Page 27



along with detailed plans in respect of the Better Care Fund. 
 

15.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

15.1 As outlined in the Background Information section above. 
 

16.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

16.1 
 

None  
 

17.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

17.1 
 

As outlined in Background Information section above. 

18.0 Background papers: 
 

18.1 
 

None  

 

Page 28



Appendix 5(a) 
 

Timescales for implementation: 
 
It is recommended that the new model be implemented from the start of the new municipal 
year.  As such the following path to implementation is recommended. 
 

November to 
January 2016 

 Draft Terms of reference endorsed by Lancashire Chief Executives 
and Lancashire Leaders 

 Council (upper tier) approval through Cabinet/Executive and Full 
Council 

 Continue engagement with statutory HWBs on the new proposals 

 Statutory boards build relationships with local area partnerships, 
potentially through joint meetings/workshops to begin to identify 
membership; ways of working; key priorities etc. 
 

January to March 
2017 

 Operate in shadow form with members agreed and in place 

 Finalising of terms of reference for each group, taking feedback from 
Cabinets/Executives and Full Councils 

 Communications on ways of working from May 2017 

 Existing statutory HWBs will meet, including signing off Better Care 
Fund Plans for 2017/18, in March 2017 (subject to national 
timescales) 
 

1 April 2017 – 
June 2017 

 Final terms of reference for pan-Lancashire HWB and LHWBPs 
agreed by the three partner authorities in May 2017 and formally 
transfer statutory powers from existing three HWBs 

 Inaugural meetings of new HWB and LHWBPs 

 Formal agreement of chair and vice-chair 
 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 6(b) 

 

1 
 

LOCAL AREA HEALTH AND WELLBEING PARTNERSHIP 

 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
Introduction 
 
Health and Wellbeing Boards are a key element of the Health and Social Care Act 2012 and they 
are a means to deliver improved strategic co-ordination across the NHS, social care, children’s 
services and public health.  The Boards must assess the needs and assets of the local population, 
producing a strategy that addresses these needs and builds on any assets, influences 
commissioning plans of organisations and promotes joint commissioning and integrated provision.  
Statutory responsibility for the provision of health and wellbeing boards sit with upper tier 
authorities, which for Lancashire is Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council, Blackpool Borough 
Council and Lancashire County Council.  For the purposes of this terms of reference the three 
upper tier authorities with statutory responsibility for health and wellbeing will be referred to as the 
three statutory health and wellbeing authorities. 
 
The health and wellbeing “system” is changing at both a pan-Lancashire level and at a local 
delivery level, in line with the Five Year Forward View for the NHS, national Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan (STP) agenda and the Combined Authority approach for Lancashire. 
  
In light of these changes, the Leaders and Chief Executives from each of the Lancashire local 
authorities have worked together to design a new model for health and wellbeing board 
governance for the pan-Lancashire footprint.  The model reflects a need to ensure robust 
accountability of system changes linked to the Lancashire and South Cumbria STP delivery and 
service reconfigurations and as such aligns itself to the delivery footprints for the STP.  The agreed 
model, presented in Figure 1 below, takes the form of a single Health and Wellbeing Board for the 
pan-Lancashire footprint, with five local area health and wellbeing partnerships (LHWBPs), 
reflecting the local health economies.   
 
The model has been designed to provide the strongest collective influence and governance across 
the new emerging health and wellbeing system. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 1. 

Page 31



Appendix 6(b) 

 

2 
 

 
Local Area Health and Wellbeing Partnership 

Terms of Reference 

 
 
1. Aims 
 
1.1 To improve life chances for the residents of <INSERT AREA> by improving health 

and wellbeing, creating healthy places and reducing health inequalities, giving all 
people the opportunity to Start Well, Live Well and Age Well; 
 

1.2 To provide local accountability for improved health and wellbeing (morbidity, 
mortality, quality of life) and health equity outcomes for the population of 
Lancashire; 
 

1.3 To promote integration and partnership working between the NHS, social care, 
public health and other local services. 

 
2. Purpose 
 
2.1 To support the pan-Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board in its preparation of a 

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
(JHWS); 
 

2.2 To ensure the implementation of the pan-Lancashire Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy within their local delivery area and the achievement of associated 
outcomes; 
 

2.3 To approve plans for joint commissioning and pooled budget arrangements relevant 
to their local delivery area, so people are provided with better integrated care and 
support; 
 

2.4 To make recommendations to the pan-Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board in 
respect of the local area CCG commissioning intentions and plans for joint 
commissioning and pooled budget arrangements relevant to their local delivery 
area; 
 

2.5 To oversee the implementation of plans for joint commissioning and pooled budget 
arrangements, within their local delivery area 
 

2.6 To lead close working between commissioners and providers of health and social 
care services and other health related services within <INSERT AREA>, such as 
housing and other local government services, across Lancashire and other relevant 
footprints; 
 

2.7 To influence the development of major plans and service redesigns of health and 
wellbeing related services both within their local delivery area and at the pan-
Lancashire level, to ensure that local needs are understood and reflected within 
proposals. 

 

Page 32



Appendix 6(b) 

 

3 
 

NB arrangements in relation to the development and approval of Better Care Fund 
plans will be defined during 2017, when the future direction of travel of the Fund 
both from a national Government point of view and a Lancashire and South Cumbria 
STP point of view is known and understood. 
 
 
3. Accountability 
 
3.1 The Partnership will be accountable to the pan-Lancashire Health and Wellbeing 

Board; the relevant local Council and Clinical Commissioning Group governing 
bodies, by ensuring access to meeting minutes and presenting papers as required; 
 

3.2 The local area Clinical Commissioning Groups will report to the Partnership on a 
regular basis, by ensuring access to meeting minutes and presenting papers as 
required; 

 
4. Leadership 
 
4.1 Leadership of the Partnership is as follows: 

 

 Chair – a councillor 

 Vice-chair – a CCG representative 
 
5. Membership 

 
5.1 Core membership: 

 

 A representative from each district level council relevant to the area 

 A representative from each CCG relevant to the area 

 A representative from Lancashire County Council  

 The relevant Divisional Commander of Lancashire Constabulary 

 The relevant Chief Officer of Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service 

 One or more VCFS representatives 

 A Healthwatch representative 

 Children’s services; adult services and public health departmental 
representatives 

 <For the Morecambe Bay area only - A representative from the relevant 
HWBB for Cumbria> 
 

5.2 Provider representatives relevant to the local area will also be invited to form part of 
the Partnership, however, these members will not have voting rights; 
 

5.3 The co-option of other members, including any lay members, will be at the 
discretion of the Partnership; 
 

5.4 Named deputies for Partnership members are as follows; 
 

 To be agreed 
 

Page 33



Appendix 6(b) 

 

4 
 

5.5 The Chair and Vice Chair will keep under review the membership of the Board and 
if appropriate will make recommendations on any changes to the core membership 
as required, to continue to respond to changes in the system. 

 
 
6. Voting members 
 
6.1 The core members outlined above, or their nominated deputies, will be the only 

individuals with voting rights. 
 
7. Invited members 

 
7.1  Additional members may be invited at the discretion of the Partnership to specific 

meetings.  These are likely to include: 
 

 Representatives from the NHS Commissioning Board 

 Local authority directors or heads of service 

 Other officers of the local authorities, NHS and other local health and 
wellbeing stakeholders 

 Other councillors of the local authorities. 
 

7.2 Invited members will not have voting rights. 
 
8. Decision making 
 
8.1 The Partnership will need at least a third of its membership <INSERT EXACT 

NUMBER RELEVANT TO AREA> to be quorate – this must include one member 
from each of the relevant local authorities and one Clinical Commissioning Group 
member.  Voting members will appoint deputies with the agreement of the Chair; 
 

8.2 Where consensus cannot be reached the matter will be decided by a simple 
majority of those voting members present in the room at the time the question was 
put.  The Chair will take the vote by a show of hands.  If there are an equal number 
of votes for and against, the Chair will have a second or casting vote. 
 

9. Roles and responsibilities of Partnership members 
 
9.1 To work together effectively to support the production and delivery of the Joint 

Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy; 
 

9.2 To work within the Partnership to build a collaborative partnership to key decision 
making that embeds health and wellbeing challenge, issue resolution and provides 
strategic system leadership; 
 

9.3 To participate in Partnership discussions to reflect the views of their organisations, 
being sufficiently briefed to be able to make recommendations about future policy 
developments and service delivery; 
 

9.4 To champion the work of the Partnership in their wider work and networks and in all 
individual community engagement activities; 
 

Page 34



Appendix 6(b) 

 

5 
 

9.5 To share any changes to strategy, system configuration and performance pertinent 
to their own partner organisations, with the Partnership, outlining the consequences 
of such on budgets and service delivery, to allow the Partnership to consider the 
wider system implications;  
 

9.6 To ensure that there are communication mechanisms in place within their 
organisations to enable information about the Partnership’s priorities and 
recommendations to be effectively disseminated; 

 
10 Agenda setting and notice of meetings 
 
10.1 The agenda will be developed by partnership representation at agenda setting 

meetings and membership of this group is, as a minimum, Chair and Vice-chair. 
 

10.2 Any agenda items or reports to be considered at the meeting should be submitted to 
the nominated Council’s Democratic Services no later than seven working days in 
advance of the next meeting.  No business will be conducted that is not on the 
agenda, unless agreed with the Chair prior to commencement of the meeting. 

 

11 Procedure at meetings 
 
11.1 Meetings of the Board are not required to be open to the public  
 
11.2 The Partnership may also hold development / informal sessions throughout the year 

where all members are expected to attend and partake as the agenda suggests. 
 

12 Conflict of interest 
 
12.1 In accordance with the Combined Authority’s Committee Procedure Rules, at the 

commencement of all meetings all Board members shall declare disclosable 
pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests and any conflicts of interest; 
 

12.2 In the case of non-pecuniary matters members may remain for all of part of the 
meeting, participate and vote at the meeting on the item in question; 
 

12.3 In the case of pecuniary matters members must leave the meeting during 
consideration of that item. 

 
13 Code of conduct 
 
13.1 All Councillors and co-opted members of Council committees are required to 

comply with the Code of Conduct of the Combined Authority <insert relevant section 
when finalised>  Therefore, all voting members of the Board will be required to 
comply with the Code of Conduct. 

 
13.2 Sections of the Combined Authority Code of Conduct, relevant to declarations of 

interest to be inserted once finalised. 
 

13.3 The NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England) is under a duty to issue guidance to 
CCGs on the exercise of their functions in relation to conflicts of interest and CCGs 
must have regards to such guidance.  This list is not exhaustive – as non-Councillor 

Page 35



Appendix 6(b) 

 

6 
 

members of Board may also be bound by other codes of conduct and professional 
standards.  It should also be noted that the public law notions of predetermination 
and bias will also apply. 

 

13.4 As a matter of process, each agenda of the Health and Wellbeing Board will have 
“Declarations of Interest” as a standing item. 

14 Governance 
 

14.1 The Health and Wellbeing Partnership is a sub-committee of the pan-Lancashire 
Health and Wellbeing Board, which in-turn is a committee of the statutory HWB 
councils established in accordance with section 102 LGA 1972.  Reports before the 
Board requiring decision will have gone through necessary governance of the 
author / owner as applicable.  Reports will also be clear what and to whom the 
recommendations apply.  A full copy of the Local Authority (Public Health, Health 
and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 (SI 2013/218) is 
available on request. 
 

 
 

Page 36



Appendix 5(c) 

1 
 

PAN LANCASHIRE - HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
Introduction 
 
Health and Wellbeing Boards are a key element of the Health and Social Care Act 2012 and they 
are a means to deliver improved strategic co-ordination across the NHS, social care, children’s 
services and public health.  The Boards must assess the needs and assets of the local population, 
producing a strategy that addresses these needs and builds on any assets, influences 
commissioning plans of organisations and promotes joint commissioning and integrated provision.  
Statutory responsibility for the provision of health and wellbeing boards sit with upper tier 
authorities, which for Lancashire is Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council, Blackpool Borough 
Council and Lancashire County Council.  For the purposes of this terms of reference the three 
upper tier authorities with statutory responsibility for health and wellbeing will be referred to as the 
three statutory health and wellbeing authorities. 
 
The health and wellbeing “system” is changing at both a pan-Lancashire level and at a local 
delivery level, in line with the Five Year Forward View for the NHS, national Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan (STP) agenda and the Combined Authority approach for Lancashire. 
  
In light of these changes, the Leaders and Chief Executives from each of the Lancashire local 
authorities have worked together to design a new model for health and wellbeing board 
governance for the pan-Lancashire footprint.  The model reflects a need to ensure robust 
accountability of system changes linked to the Lancashire and South Cumbria STP delivery and 
service reconfigurations and as such aligns itself to the delivery footprints for the STP.  The agreed 
model, presented in Figure 1 below, takes the form of a single Health and Wellbeing Board for the 
pan-Lancashire footprint, with five local area health and wellbeing partnerships (LHWBPs), 
reflecting the local health economies.   
 
The model has been designed to provide the strongest collective influence and governance across 
the new emerging health and wellbeing system. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 1. 

Page 37



Appendix 5(c) 

2 
 

Pan-Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board 

Terms of Reference 

 
 
1. Aims 
 
1.1 To improve life chances for the residents of Lancashire, by improving health and 

wellbeing; creating healthy places and reducing health inequalities, giving all people 
the opportunity to Start Well, Live Well and Age Well; 
 

1.2 To provide local accountability for improved health and wellbeing (morbidity, 
mortality, quality of life) and health equity outcomes for the population of 
Lancashire; 
 

1.3 To promote integration and partnership working between the NHS, social care, 
public health and other local services. 

 
2. Purpose 
 
2.1 To prepare a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and Joint Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS), which is a duty of the statutory HWB authorities and 
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs); 
 

2.2 To oversee the delivery of the agreed Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and 
associated outcomes through the five local area health and wellbeing partnerships; 
 

2.3 To receive recommendations from the five local area health and wellbeing 
partnerships in relation to CCG commissioning intentions and plans for joint 
commissioning and pooled budget arrangements; 
 

2.4 To approve plans for joint commissioning and pooled budget arrangements, 
particularly the Better Care Fund, so people are provided with better integrated care 
and support; 
 

2.5 To oversee the implementation of plans for joint commissioning and pooled budget 
arrangements, through the five local area health and wellbeing partnerships; 
 

2.6 To lead close working between commissioners and providers of health and social 
care services and other health related services, such as housing and other local 
government services, across Lancashire and other relevant footprints; 
 

2.7 To influence the development of major plans and service redesigns of health and 
wellbeing related services, to ensure that local needs are understood and reflected 
within proposals. 
 

NB arrangements in relation to the development and approval of Better Care Fund 
plans will be defined during 2017, when the future direction of travel of the Fund 
both from a national Government point of view and a Lancashire and South Cumbria 
STP point of view is known and understood. 
 
 

Page 38



Appendix 5(c) 

3 
 

3. Accountability 
 
3.1 The Board will report to the Cabinet/Executive Board of Lancashire County Council, 

Blackpool Council and Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council and the relevant 
Clinical Commissioning Group Governing bodies, by ensuring access to meeting 
minutes and presenting papers as required; 
 

3.2 The Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning Groups (JCCCGs) for Lancashire 
and South Cumbria will report into the pan-Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board 
on a regular basis, by ensuring access to meeting minutes and presenting papers 
as required; 
 

3.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees1 have powers in relation to the discharge of 
functions by the Health and Wellbeing Board.  Updates on the work of the pan-
Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board will be provided to the relevant Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees2 as required; 
 

3.4 The Directors of Public Health will provide Annual Reports to their Council detailing 
the Health and Wellbeing Board’s work during the past year. 

 
4. Leadership: 
 
4.1 Leadership for the Board will be as follows: 
 

 Chair – a councillor from one of the statutory HWB authorities  

 Vice-chair – a CCG representative.  
 
4.2 The Leadership will be rotated annually between the statutory HWB authorities and 

administration of the Board will be agreed by the upper tier authorities. 
 
5. Membership 

 
5.1 The pan-Lancashire HWBB reflects the statutory prescribed membership for health 

and wellbeing boards and local good practice; 
 
5.2 Statutory members: 
 

 Three councillors – one from each of the statutory HWB authorities (one of 
whom will chair the Board) 

 Five councillors – one from each of the Local Area Health and Wellbeing 
Partnerships  

 Five CCG representatives - one of whom would be vice-chair 

 One director of adult services – as nominated by the three Directors of Adult 
Social Services (Blackpool; Blackburn with Darwen and Lancashire) 

 One director of children’s services - as nominated by the three Directors of 
Children’s Services (Blackpool; Blackburn with Darwen and Lancashire) 

 One director of public health - as nominated by the three Directors of Public 
Health (Blackpool; Blackburn and Lancashire) 

                                                           
1
&

2 
Wording to be finalised when the overview and scrutiny arrangements for health and wellbeing have been 

confirmed. 
 

Page 39



Appendix 5(c) 

4 
 

 One representative of the Local Healthwatch organisation. 
 
5.3 Non-statutory members: 
 

 One representative from NHS England 

 One representative from Public Health England 

 The Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire 

 Chief officer Lancashire Constabulary 

 Chair or Chief officer Lancashire Fire and Rescue Authority 

 Chair of Combined Authority 

 Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector representative from the pan-
Lancashire infrastructure. 

 
5.4  Named deputies for Board members are as follows: 
 

 To be agreed 
 
5.5  The statutory members will keep under review the membership of the Board and if 

appropriate will make recommendations on any changes to the core membership as 
required, to continue to respond to changes in the system. 

 
6. Voting members 
 
6.1 The statutory members outlined above, or their nominated deputies, will be the only 

individuals with voting rights. 
 

7. Non-voting members 
 
7.1 The members identified above as non-statutory members have been invited to form 

part of the pan-Lancashire HWWB to ensure an adequate breadth of service 
delivery and activity is represented and considered by the Board in their 
discussions. 
 

7.2 The non-statutory members will not have voting rights. 
 
8. Invited members 

 
8.1  Additional members may be invited at the discretion of the Board to specific 

meetings.  These are likely to include: 
 

 Representatives from the NHS Commissioning Board 

 Local authority directors or heads of service 

 Other officers of the local authorities, NHS and other local health and 
wellbeing stakeholders 

 Other Executive/Cabinet Members of the local authorities. 
 

8.2 Invited members will not have voting rights. 
 
9. Decision making 
 

Page 40



Appendix 5(c) 

5 
 

9.1 The Board will need at least six voting members to be quorate – this must include 
each of the three elected members from statutory HWB authorities, one Clinical 
Commissioning Group member and two other Board members.  Voting members 
will appoint deputies with the agreement of the Chair; 
 

9.2 Decisions will be made by way of a simple majority vote members present in the 
room at the time the question was put.  The Chair will take the vote by a show of 
hands.  If there are an equal number of votes for and against, the Chair will have a 
second or casting vote; 
 

9.3 For a decision on statutory HWBB functions members of the Board will need assure 
themselves that the relevant Local Area Health and Wellbeing Partnership (s) have 
given their endorsement to the decision. 
 

9.4 The statutory HWBB functions are: 
 

 Joint strategic needs assessment 

 Joint health and wellbeing strategy 

 Encouraging the integrated working of health and care providers for the 
purposes of improving health and wellbeing in their local area  
 

10. Roles and responsibilities of Board members 
 
10.1 To work together effectively to ensure the production and delivery of the Joint 

Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy; 
 

10.2 To work within the Board to build a collaborative partnership to key decision making 
that embeds health and wellbeing challenge, issue resolution and provides strategic 
system leadership; 
 

10.3 To participate in Board discussions to reflect the views of their organisations, being 
sufficiently briefed to be able to make recommendations about future policy 
developments and service delivery; 
 

10.4 To champion the work of the Board in their wider work and networks and in all 
individual community engagement activities; 
 

10.5 To share any changes to strategy, system configuration and performance pertinent 
to their own partner organisations, with the Board, outlining the consequences of 
such on budgets and service delivery, to allow the Board to consider the wider 
system implications;  
 

10.6 To ensure that there are communication mechanisms in place within their 
organisations to enable information about the Health and Wellbeing Board’s 
priorities and recommendations to be effectively disseminated. 

 
11. Agenda setting and notice of meetings 
 
11.1 The agenda will be developed by partnership representation at agenda setting 

meetings and membership of this group is Chair, Vice-chair, the five Chairs of the 
Local Health and Wellbeing Partnerships and the three Directors of Public Health.  

Page 41



Appendix 5(c) 

6 
 

 
 

11.2 Any agenda items or reports to be considered at the meeting should be submitted 
to the nominated Council’s Democratic Services no later than seven working days 
in advance of the next meeting.  No business will be conducted that is not on the 
agenda, unless agreed with the Chair prior to commencement of the meeting. 
 

11.3 In accordance with the Access of Information Legislation, the nominated Council’s 
Democratic Services will circulate and publish the agenda and reports prior to each 
meeting.  Exempt or Confidential Information shall only be circulated to core 
members. 

 
12. Procedure at meetings 
 
12.1 General meetings of the Board are open to the public and in accordance with the 

Combined Authority’s Committee Procedure Rules will include a Public Question 
Time session.  Papers, agendas and minutes will be published on the relevant 
section of each of the statutory HWB authorities’ webpages. 
 

12.2 The Board will also hold development / informal sessions throughout the year where 
all members are expected to attend and partake as the agenda suggests; 
 

13. Conflict of interest 
 
13.1 In accordance with the Combined Authority’s Committee Procedure Rules, at the 

commencement of all meetings all Board members shall declare disclosable 
pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests and any conflicts of interest; 
 

13.2 In the case of non-pecuniary matters members may remain for all of part of the 
meeting, participate and vote at the meeting on the item in question; 
 

13.3 In the case of pecuniary matters members must leave the meeting during 
consideration of that item. 

 
14. Code of conduct 
 
14.1 All Councillors and co-opted members of Council committees are required to 

comply with the Code of Conduct of the Combined Authority <insert relevant section 
when finalised>  Therefore, all voting members of the Board will be required to 
comply with the Code of Conduct. 
 

14.2 Sections of the Combined Authority Code of Conduct, relevant to declarations of 
interest to be inserted once finalised. 
 

14.3 The NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England) is under a duty to issue guidance 
to CCGs on the exercise of their functions in relation to conflicts of interest and 
CCGs must have regards to such guidance.  This list is not exhaustive – as non-
Councillor members of Board may also be bound by other codes of conduct and 
professional standards.  It should also be noted that the public law notions of 
predetermination and bias will also apply. 
 

Page 42



Appendix 5(c) 

7 
 

14.4 As a matter of process, each agenda of the Health and Wellbeing Board will have 
“Declarations of Interest” as a standing item. 
 

 
 
15. Governance, decision making, transparency and accountability 
 
15.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board is a Committee of the statutory HWB councils 

established in accordance with section 102 LGA 1972.  Reports before the Board 
requiring decision will have gone through necessary governance of the author / 
owner as applicable.  Reports will also be clear what and to whom the 
recommendations apply.  A full copy of the Local Authority (Public Health, Health 
and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 (SI 2013/218) is 
available on request. 
 

15.2 Health and Wellbeing Board meetings will be subject to the same openness and 
transparency rules as other Council committees established under section 102 of 
the Local Government Act 1972.  The law requires all agendas and reports to be 
made available to the public five clear working days in advance of the meeting.  
Meetings should be held in public and the public should also be able to access any 
additional information that is discussed in a meeting.  If a decision needs to be 
made in private, information associated with that decision can be exempt from 
these rules only in the circumstances prescribed in the Council’s Access to 
Information rules in the Council Constitution.  The Board has taken the decision not 
to formally broadcast their meetings, due to financial constraints, however members 
of the public and press are welcome to broadcast proceedings using any media 
available to them, should they wish to. 
 

15.3 Decisions made by the Health and Wellbeing Board under their core functions do 
not need to go on the Council’s ‘Register of Key Decisions’ and they are not subject 
to the requirement to provide 28 days’ notice of intention to take a decision.  The 
only exception to this will apply if the Council delegates additional specific functions 
to the Board.  In these circumstances, the Board will need to adhere to the relevant 
requirements of all the applicable legal frameworks.  As Health and Wellbeing 
Boards are non-Executive Committees (they are a committee of the Council), their 
core functions are not subject to the Council’s “Call in” procedure. 

 
 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD  

Relevant Officer: Dr Amanda Doyle, Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group 

Relevant Cabinet Member  Councillor Graham Cain, Cabinet Secretary (Resilient 
Communities) 
 

Date of Meeting  18 January 2017 

 

LANCASHIRE AND SOUTH CUMBRIA CHANGE PROGRAMME AND 
SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME UPDATE  
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Health and Wellbeing Board received the Lancashire and South Cumbria 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) on 19 October 2016, at a joint meeting 
with Blackburn with Darwen and Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board. This report 
seeks to update the Health and Wellbeing Board,  on: 

 

 Sustainability and Transformation Plan– solutions and work streams 

 Sustainability and Transformation Plan – summary document 

 Case for Change 

 It sets out the current status of these and alerts the Board to up-coming milestones 
and activities, and sets out how these are being managed through the agreed 
Healthier Lancashire and South Cumbria governance and programme arrangements. 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 To note the content of this update report. 
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 
 
 

The Health and Wellbeing Board should be assured that the Lancashire and South 
Cumbria Change Programme (LSCCP) has created a good infrastructure for the 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan. The governance arrangements for the 
Lancashire and South Cumbria Change Programme are now in place.   
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 

Yes 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6



3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered:  
 

 None. 
 

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is: “Creating stronger communities and increasing 
resilience”. 
 

5.0 
 

Background Information  
 

5.1 On 21 October 2016, the third and final submission of the draft Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan was submitted to NHS England. Sustainability and 
Transformation Plans were requested through the NHS planning guidance issued in 
December 2015 with every health and care system asked to create its own ambitious 
local blueprint for accelerating its implementation of the NHS Five Year Forward 
View.  
 

5.2 The Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) for Lancashire and South Cumbria 
(LSC) has been developed through Healthier Lancashire and South Cumbria and has 
utilised the agreed change programme approach and built on work that was already 
being undertaken, this included the Alignment of the Plans (May-October 2015), Case 
for Change Report (April-June 2016).   
 

5.3 The three Health and Wellbeing Boards (Blackpool, Blackburn with Darwen and 
Lancashire County) held a joint meeting on 19 October 2016 to receive the 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan third draft and supported its submission by Dr 
Amanda Doyle, Sustainability and Transformation Plan Lead, to NHS England.  
Cumbria County Council also discussed the Sustainability and Transformation Plan 
informally at its meeting in October. 
 

5.4 While it had been expected that the 44 Sustainability and Transformation Plans 
nationally would remain draft and therefore not public documents, Lancashire and 
South Cumbria felt it was important to share the Sustainability and Transformation 
Plan and to continue to engage with stakeholders on its development and 
implementation.  On 11 November 2016 the Lancashire and South Cumbria 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan third draft was published and is available on 
www.lancashiresouthcumbria.org.uk The Sustainability and Transformation Plan had 
been sent to all stakeholder organisations and local MPs 
 

5.5 This paper is intended to provide the Health and Wellbeing Board, following on from 
the joint meeting (of three boards) on 19 October 2016, with an update on: 
 

 Sustainability and Transformation Plan – design solutions and work streams 

Page 46

http://www.lancashiresouthcumbria.org.uk/


 Sustainability and Transformation Plan summary document 

 Case for change 
 

5.7 The Sustainability and Transformation Plan is guided by some key objectives 
established by partners in Healthier Lancashire and South Cumbria (HLSC): 
 

 To set out a clear direction of travel for the unified health and care system in 
Lancashire and South Cumbria  as the Five Year Forward View has across 
England 

 To achieve fundamental and measurable improvements in health outcomes 

 To reduce health inequalities across Lancashire and South Cumbria 

 To achieve parity of esteem for mental health and physical health across 
Lancashire and South Cumbria 

 To ensure greater focus on ill-health prevention, early intervention and self-
care where this improves outcomes 

 To ensure change is supported by a clear evidence base or an evaluation 
structure where evidence is not available 

 To remove organisational or professional boundaries that get in the way of 
progress 

 
To make maximum use of new technology when this will improve the quality of care 
provided. 
 

5.8 Steps already made: 
 

 An agreed and working governance  structure, this  is designed to allow us to 
make collaborative decisions at the required pace of change  

 A detailed evidential case for change which has informed the  assumptions 
and principles  that partners are working on in their local systems and a  
consistent and well tested process to bring about the  transformation on the 
required size and at the necessary speed that our population needs require 

 An emerging future health and care system  proposal, that is built on the  
strength of our five local health and care economies as the delivery 
mechanisms; providing integrated services to local populations, ensuring 
stronger primary and community services to provide a greater range of 
services closer to people’s homes. 

 Agreed priority work streams across the Sustainability and Transformation 
Plan footprint,  with  clear scope to ensure  that  we are able to  sustainably 
reduce the  demands on hospitals and ambulance services of avoidable  
admissions and stays – allowing better care quality and  a focus on efficient 
pathways of care for more complex conditions.  Allowing investment in 
preventative and community based services – allowing improvements in 
quality of services, including urgent and emergency care and making them 

Page 47



more accessible to the whole population, (right care, right time, right place) – 
allowing quality standards to be enhances over a one service approach for 
services such as cancer, mental health and learning disabilities. 

 
5.9 Steps still needed: 

 

 Deliver already agreed plans, and utilise the opportunities through agreeing 
two year contracts by December 2016. Deliver evidence based, best practice 
recommendations such as sharing back office functions and other efficiencies 
detailed in the Carter Report and the Right-Care initiative 

 Implement agreed policies  such as those  around procedures  with a lower 
clinical impact 

 Agree the resources to mobilise the Sustainability and Transformation Plan 
footprint work streams to undertake the gold standard solution design 
process around 

o urgent and emergency care to ensure a model that is high quality and 
affordable  

o hospital and out of hospital services to ensure they are joined up, 
integrated and focused on population need and achieve agreed 
standards 

o Transformation of primary care as the nucleus of a personal, 
wellbeing, community based model of care 

o Ensuring mental health needs are equal to physical health  
 

 Make the most effective use of the resources (funding, people, technology) 
available to us  

 Maximise the opportunities around new technology and free the workforce 
across the system to build on existing achievements and provide better 
outcomes for patients and communities.  Making sure all our staff have 
sustainable career prospects, learning opportunities and are able to make the 
difference to peoples’ health and wellbeing they want to. 

 
5.10 Update on solutions and work streams 

 
The NHS organisations are currently working across their local health and care 
economies to develop and sign off two year operational plans, this work is being 
assured by NHS England.  The plans and subsequent contracts are informed by the 
financial and activity analysis that was done for the STP which has now been cut by 
local delivery plan area and STP work stream. 
 

 Work across provider organisations and the clinical commissioning groups has 
already been progressing in respect of Rightcare and Carter recommendations with 
opportunities and benefits being considered and reported through the two year 
operational plans and contracts. 

Page 48



In respect of interventions of lower clinical value and other existing policies, the 
senior person leading on these is currently finalising an implementation plan which 
will include further clinical engagement to develop wording and to ensure adoption 
of the policy, along with utilisation of IT systems to support clinicians to use the 
policies and support patients with regard to the impact of the policy.  These plans will 
be signed off and monitored by the Collaborative Commissioning Board. 
 

 Central Lancashire and Pennine Lancashire local delivery plan areas have been 
enacting the solution design process, with events attracting over 100 delegates, this 
is informing and shaping their local delivery plans. 
 

 In respect of the Sustainability and Transformation Plan work streams progress has 
been: 

 

 A proposal for a 12 week review of acute, specialised and urgent and 
emergency care services is being developed through the work stream, a 
workshop was held on 29 November 2016 and the proposal was then signed 
off at the Programme Board on 7 December 2016.  Additional specialist 
support to the Senior Responsible Officer has been secured and funded. This 
will provide an accelerated analysis and design process to develop an 
evidence based long list of options and provide a framework for addressing 
the options for individual services and will inform the work of acute and 
specialised work stream, the urgent and emergency care work stream and the 
NHS provider group. 

 The primary care, prevention and population health, and mental health work 
streams presented their initiation documents to the Programme Board on 7 
December 2016 to enable the Board to consider priorities and utilisation of 
resources and to recommend to the Joint Committee of Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (JCCCGs) a work programme for 2017/18. Including 
the decisions that the JCCCGs will be expected to take. These documents have 
been developed over the last few months with stakeholders. 

 The detailed plans around workforce and digital health and IT will be further 
developed in the New Year following agreement on the activities and 
milestones of all the work streams and the completion of local delivery plans 
at Christmas. 

 
5.11 Summary document and case for change 

 
A narrative document is being developed to ensure a much wider involvement, 
communication and engagement plan across the STP footprint with a much broader 
stakeholder group of the public and staff.  This document will also incorporate the 
case for change, so it will include: 
 

 The reasons/arguments/need for change 

Page 49



 What improvements in the future could be and what they would mean for 
people 

 How we are proposing to make the changes happen, setting out the approach 
and principles and objectives and how this will be done at organisational, 
local delivery plan and Sustainability and Transformation Plan levels 
 

 This document will be agreed and signed off by the JCCCGs and a variety of formats 
will be provided to support the wider engagement and involvement activities, this 
will include leaflets, an infographic presentation, slides, posters etc. and in effect will 
‘launch’ Healthier Lancashire and South Cumbria. 
 

 The document and all associated materials and products are being developed at the 
moment and these are expected to be thoroughly tested through specially convened 
stakeholder groups in early January.  A plan for engagement and involvement and 
communication across all stakeholders is being compiled and will be reviewed by the 
Programme Board on 18th January 2017.  This plan will ensure targeted activities, 
both through the local delivery plan areas and across the Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan footprint, for public, staff, local politicians and elected 
members.  While Roger Baker, the Comms and Engagement Director has recently 
left, Neil Greaves, will be starting with Healthier Lancashire and South Cumbria from 
January and will be contacting people to help design and inform the plans over the 
coming weeks. 
 

5.12 Conclusions 
 
Work has progressed on the sustainability elements of the Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan, including plans and further implementation of opportunities 
afforded by Right Care and Carter and this is being monitored through the 
Collaborative Commissioning Board (which includes health and local government). 
 

 The transformation programme of work is now being mobilised and priorities and 
resources being considered and agreed at the Healthier Lancashire and South 
Cumbria Programme Board. 

 
 There will be a significant level of engagement, involvement and communication 

activities immediately after Christmas, which will be focused on widening the 
stakeholder group to the public and staff. 

 
5.13 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 

 
No 

5.14 List of Appendices 
 

 

 None  

Page 50



6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

None 

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

None 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None 

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

None 

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 
 

None 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

None 

13.0 Background papers and further information: 
 

13.1 
 

Delivering the Five Year Forward View: NHS planning guidance 2016/ 2017-2020/ 
2021 published 22 December 2016 by NHS England. 
 

  

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD  
Relevant Officer: Mark Towers, Director of Governance and Partnerships  

Relevant Cabinet Member  Cllr Cain, Cabinet Secretary, Resilient Communities 

Date of Decision/ Meeting  18 January 2017 

 

REVIEW OF PARTNERSHIPS AND FORUMS 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 This paper is presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board to put forward proposals 
for rationalising the governance and meeting arrangements of the Council’s 
partnerships and other statutory boards. 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 To note the report and support the proposals for new ways of working to be 
developed, to include consideration of partnership arrangements where possible and 
appropriate. 
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

The recommendations will allow the further development of the model of Health and 
Wellbeing Board governance locally and will support more effective working 
practices. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 To maintain current arrangements would be unfeasible  
 

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is Priority Two – Communities: Creating stronger 
communities and increasing resilience. 
 
 
 

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



5.0 Background Information 
 

5.1 Since September 2015 a review of the Council’s partnerships, boards and groups has 
been taking place to identify duplication and gain clarity on membership and 
purpose. 
 

5.2 The diagram at appendix (a) shows the current picture from the starting point of the 
four statutory partnership boards (Health and Wellbeing, Adults and Children’s 
Safeguarding Boards, and BSafe (Community Safety Partnership)) along with their 
associated sub-groups, separately funded Boards and other delivery and strategic 
partnership groups; these are mainly delivering ‘priority two – resilient communities’ 
elements of the Council Plan and clearly demonstrate some of the complexities 
involved in the current arrangements and some areas of overlap that may require 
further consideration. It is important to note that the diagram is from a local 
authority perspective and other organisations will have their own governance 
arrangements which are linked to these.  
 

5.3 Since the review began the Children’s Partnership has been discontinued and work 
has been undertaken to align the Adults and Children’s Safeguarding Boards which 
includes bringing together the teams that support the Boards. 
 

 Further developments and discussions 
 

5.4 At the last Public Sector Board meeting, the Board requested a further piece of work 
be undertaken to understand the membership, purpose and activity of the various 
boards and sub-groups to identify any crossover, duplication or further potential 
areas for alignment; this is available on request. 
 

5.5 The chairs of the Health and Wellbeing Board, Safeguarding Boards (Children’s and 
Adults), and BSafe have met to discuss the current governance arrangements of the 
four statutory boards with a view to aligning agendas and reducing duplication; this 
discussion was extended to include partners from Lancashire Constabulary and the 
Clinical Commissioning Group.  
 

5.6 At this meeting a number of suggestions were made to rationalise the frequency of 
meetings and reduce the number of presentations that are routinely delivered to all 
of the different arenas. These are described below: 
 

5.7 Rationalise meetings 
Currently the Health and Wellbeing Board meets six-weekly, the BSCB and BSAB 
meet bi-monthly and BSafe meets quarterly. It is proposed that each Board meets 
quarterly, on a monthly schedule, with an hour slot allocated beforehand for 
presentations that would usually be made to each Board. Therefore the HWB would 
meet January, April, July and October; BSCB/AB would meet February, May, August 

Page 54



and November; and BSafe would meet March, June, September and December. 
 

5.8 The presentation slot would be widely open for members of any Board to attend; this 
would free up time in the Board meeting to deal with actual business. For example; 
the Children and Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing Transformation Plan was 
presented a number of times to different meetings, resulting in some senior officers 
and elected members repeatedly seeing the same presentation. It is proposed that 
the new meeting schedule is trialled from 2017. 
 

5.9 The Chair of the Adult and Children’s Safeguarding Boards has also suggested to trial 
holding both safeguarding Boards on the same day with an overlap period in the 
middle; this would address issues relevant to children and adults. 
 

5.10 The Strategic Commissioning Group, a sub-group of the HWB has been meeting on a 
monthly basis since July 2015. It is proposed this group meets quarterly or bi-monthly 
in the future to support the reduction in frequency of meetings and allow a more 
focused and theme led discussion to take place. 
 

5.11 Data Analysis 
In terms of data collection and performance monitoring, the post of Data Analyst, 
funded by BSCB/AB will sit within the Business Intelligence Team, which is now part 
of the new Corporate Delivery Unit (previously Corporate Development, Engagement 
and Communications); this will build capacity and facilitate more informed analysis of 
data. It is also suggested that stronger links are made with the Partnership Analyst 
based in Lancashire Constabulary with responsibility for BSafe’s performance data.   
 

5.12 Quality assurance workshops 
A further suggestion has been proposed by the Chair of the BSCB/AB for a monthly 
quality assurance workshop to be held. This would involve a particular topic being 
chosen for a ‘deep dive’ facilitated discussion between all relevant partners at both 
strategic and operational level. 
 

5.13 Public Service Calendar 
It is proposed to establish a public sector calendar, which includes dates and details 
of all formal and informal partnership boards, similar to the Committee calendar, to 
assist with forward planning.  
 

5.14 Additional consideration: Fylde Coast Health and Wellbeing Partnership 
As part of the Lancashire and South Cumbria Change Programme plans are underway 
to develop a pan-Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board, with five local Health and 
Wellbeing Partnerships reporting in to it. Blackpool’s Health and Wellbeing Board will 
be replaced with a Fylde Coast Health and Wellbeing Partnership. It is currently 
expected that this will begin in 2017, subject to legal advice and Executive approval. 
This would fit with the proposed meeting schedule set out above, although the detail 

Page 55



has not yet been worked through. 
 

 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 

 List of Appendices 
 

 

 Appendix 8(a) - Governance diagram 
 

 

6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

None 

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

None 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None  

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

None  

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 None 
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None 
 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

N/a 

13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 
 

None 
 

 
  
 

Page 56



Priority Two Governance 
 
 

 

HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING 

BOARD 

Strategic 

Commissioning 

Group 

Corporate 
Parenting Panel 

Schools Forum 

Vulnerable 
Adolescents Hub 

Board 

SAFEGUARDING 
CHILDREN’S BOARD  

HeadStart 
Executive 

Better Start 
Executive 

School 
Improvement 
Partnership 

Health Protection 
Forum 

Fulfilling Lives 
Executive 

Early Action 

SEND Board 

Mental Health 
Partnership Board 

KEY 

Commissioners 

Sub Group 

Statutory 

Continuous 
Improvement 
Partnership 

External funders 

CYP Emotional 
Wellbeing 

Transformation 
Plan 

BSAFE                        
(Community Safety 

Partnership) 

SAFEGUARDING 
ADULTS BOARD 

Anti-social 
Behaviour Working 

Group 

Child Sexual 
Exploitation Sub-

group 

Domestic Abuse & 
Interpersonal 

Violence (DAIV) 
Partnership Board 

 

BCSB Performance 
Management Group 

Finance Group 
(Joint) 

Business 
Management 

Group 

Training and 
Development Group 

(Joint)  

Children’s Case 
Review/Consider

ation Group 

Multi-Agency 
Audit Group 

(adults) 

Aquamarine 

Azure 

Prevent Delivery 
Group (multi-

agency) 

BSafe Tactical 
Tasking Group 

EXECUTIVE RESILIENT 
COMMUNITIES 

SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

BSAB Quality 
Assurance and 
Performance 
Monitoring 

Group 

Early Help 
Steering Group 

Multi-Agency Audit 
Group (children) 

Adults Case 
Review/Consider
ation Sub-group 

Neglect Sub-
group 

JSNA Strategic 
Group Board 

CCG GOVERNING BODY 

Youth Offending 
Partnership Board 

Mental Health 
Alliance Board 

Reports to 

Shadow Board 
1 x adults 

1x children 

Transience Board 

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
Relevant Officer: Dr Arif Rajpura, Director of Public Health 

Relevant Cabinet Member: Councillor Amy Cross, Cabinet Member for Adult Services 
and Health 

Date of Meeting: 18 January 2017 

 

UPDATE ON 0-5 CHILDREN’S PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES (ENHANCED 
HEALTH VISITING MODEL) 2017-2018  
 

1.0 Purpose of the report: 

1.1 To update the Health and Wellbeing Board on the 0-5 Children’s Public Health 
Services (Enhanced Health Visiting Model) 2017/ 2018. 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 To note the update. 
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

The Board is requested to receive the update for information only 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

 No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Alternative Options 

 None 
 

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is : “Communities: Creating stronger communities and 
increasing resilience” 
 

5.0 Background Information 
 

5.1 
 
 

An enhanced Health Visiting service model shown at Appendix 8(a) has been 
developed for the delivery of Health Visiting services in Blackpool from April 
2017.  Agreed by the Better Start Executive Partnership in September, this 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

provides an opportunity to transform the delivery of a key part of the Healthy 
Child Programme. The model aims to ensure a comprehensive universal offer 
that enables additional needs to be identified and addressed at an early stage; 
and interventions provided for families to address current or anticipated issues 
that will impact on positive outcomes for children. With an enhanced universal 
offer at its heart the model provides four levels of intensity (Universal, 
Universal Plus, Universal Partnership plus and Safeguarding).  At the universal 
level the model consists of eight home visits to all families, six within the first 
year of life plus two additional health reviews, including a school readiness child 
health review.  The enhanced health visiting model was developed from 
consultation with a wide range of stakeholders as part of the Health Visitor 
review over the summer led by Public Health in partnership with a Better Start. 
The model was jointly developed by stakeholders representing the Better Start 
Partnership.  
 

5.2 Visits and contacts in the new universal offer 
The core schedule of contacts and visits spans the antenatal to pre-school period, it 
presents an opportunity for health visitors, children and their parents to build the 
unique family/ health visitor relationship which is pivotal to providing a gateway to 
other levels of health visiting provision, to promote, support and safeguard the 
wellbeing of children. The existing three/ four month visit and the five universal 
health and development checks in line with the Department of Health’s mandate of 
local authority commissioning remain a core part of the model. 
 

5.3 New contacts and additional visits include: 
 

1. Universal offer of Baby Steps 10 week antenatal and postnatal programme: 
is aimed at preparing expectant and new parents for birth and parenthood, 
and consists of 10 sessions (six antenatal and three post-natal sessions) up to 
the baby is 10 weeks old, the overall aim of the programme is to optimise 
parents’ and babies’ health and wellbeing and promote protective factors 
against child maltreatment including sensitive parenting and secure 
attachment.  

2. Second New-born visit: Three to Five weeks: This is a proposed new visit: to 
allow for continuum of parent/ carer and child assessment and care providing 
maximum opportunity to intervene early where additional support is 
required. Early identification and management of perinatal mood disorders. 

3. Six month Review of Health Plan: This is not a home visit, but is an 
opportunity for the Health Visitor review the health plan and review the 
Whole Family Assessment, and allows for early identification and assessment 
and identification of child/ family health/ mental health and wellbeing needs 
and update. 

4. Home visit Three to Three and a half years: School Readiness: Proposed new 
visit will prepare children for entry to school, identify additional health needs 

Page 60



and make arrangements for transfer of care to the School Nurse. 
 

5.4 Family Nurse Partnership and ADAPT 
Alongside the new model there will be an intensive offer of support for very 
vulnerable first time mothers. Family Nurse Partnership (FNP), a home visiting 
programme delivered under licence in the UK.  Family Nurse Partnership nurses work 
with young first time mums, dads and wider family through pregnancy and the child’s 
first two years to deliver 64, hour long visits.  The aim is to build a therapeutic, 
collaborative relationship to work in partnership with parents to build self-efficacy 
and resilience.  Blackpool is currently working in partnership with the Family Nurse 
Partnership national unit and Dartington Social Research Unit to review how the 
Family Nurse Partnership programme can be adapted to better suit delivery locally to 
achieve improved outcomes in the short term and to review eligibility for the 
programme for clients with added vulnerability.  A total of 125 Family Nurse 
Partnership places will be commissioned (Including 50 places commissioned by Better 
Start). 

 
5.5 Next Steps  

As this is will be an enhanced model of delivery for Health Visiting in Blackpool, a 
transition period will be required to enable detailed development and 
implementation.  All partners are engaged and committed to ensuring development 
and implementation of the clinical model and methods, interventions and activities 
used within each visit and understand the opportunity to impact on better outcomes 
for children.  A mobilisation plan for the transition to the new model of health visiting 
will be presented to the January Better Start Executive Board for agreement. A Better 
Start has commissioned South London and Maudesley NHS Trust (SLAM) to lead on 
the implementation and transition work for the new Health Visitor model in 
Blackpool. 

 
5.6 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 

 
No 

 List of Appendices 
 

 

 Appendix 8(a) - Enhanced Health Visiting Model 2017-18 
 

 

6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

None. 
 

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

None. 
 
 

Page 61



8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None. 

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

The new enhanced model will be funded from the public health grant, costs for the 
new model have been worked up from detailed analysis of activity and the different 
levels of intensity and need.  The financial assumptions that underpin the model have 
been agreed by the Better Start Executive Partnership. 
 

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 None. 
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None. 
 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

None. 
 

13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 
 

None. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



Appendix 8(a)  
 

 
Enhanced Health Visiting Model 2017-18 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD  
Relevant Officer: Dr Amanda Doyle, Chief Clinical Officer; David Bonson, Chief 

Operating Officer 

Relevant Cabinet Member: Councillor Cain, Cabinet Secretary (Resilient Communities) 

Date of Meeting: 18 January 2017 

 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S EMOTIONAL HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING TRANSFORMATIONAL PLAN 2015/ 2020 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To provide the Board with an overview and update on progress with regard to the  
‘Children and Young People’s Emotional Health and Wellbeing Transformational Plan 
2015/ 2020’. 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 The Board is asked to endorse the progress made in delivering the Transformational 
Plan and agree next steps. 
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

The Board is the strategic forum accountable for the delivery of the Transformation 
Plan. 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 There is no alternative option; there is an expectation on CCG’s from NHS England 
that transformation plans will be produced.  

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is Priority Two – Communities: Creating stronger 
communities and increasing resilience 
 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



5.0 Background Information 
 

5.1 In 2015, the Government published ‘Future in Mind: Promoting, protecting and 
improving our children and young people’s mental health and wellbeing’. The report 
documents the findings of a Taskforce established to understand: 
 

 How it can be made easier for children, young people, parents and carers to 
access help and support when needed 

 Ways of improving how children and young people’s mental health services 
are organised, commissioned and provided 

 
5.2 The Taskforce led by Norman Lamb MP reviewed the different aspects of care and 

services which resulted in a suite of seven documents being published with 
recommendations for systemic changes. 
 

5.3 The reports, collectively produced by Department of Health (DoH), Department for 
Education (DfE) and NHS England recommended that Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCG) take ownership and be the lead organisation around children and young 
people’s emotional health and wellbeing across all mental health tiers.  
 

5.4 Subsequently, the Government announced additional funding to help meet 
ambitions of ‘Future in Mind’ - £30m nationally to establish community services for 
young people with eating disorders and £250m for five years to deliver the 
recommendations of the report.  Each CCG was required to produce a 
Transformational Plan to secure release of funding. 
 

5.5 The eight CCGs within the pan Lancashire footprint took the decision to submit a joint 
plan to NHSE.  The plan was with co-produced representatives from all CCGs, all local 
authorities (county and unitary), Lancashire MIND (representing third sector), NHS 
provider organisations, the Strategic Clinical Network and NHS England Specialised 
Commissioning.  It builds on broader engagement undertaken within each of the 
partner organisations whilst recognising the need for further engagement local 
community, children, young people and families to shape service offer that responds 
to needs and not service structures. 
 

5.6 The pan Lancashire Resilience, Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health 
Transformation Plan was signed off by NHS England in December 2015.  A pan 
Lancashire Governance structure has been developed and Project Initiation 
Documents with action plans developed and signed off at Board level.  Five work 
stream areas have been established to deliver the plan with progress reported on a 
monthly basis to the Board.  These are in line with the objectives in the plan and are 
as follows: 
 
 

Page 66



1. Promoting resilience, prevention and early intervention – place the emphasis on 
building resilience, promoting good mental health, prevention and early 
intervention; 

2. Improving access to effective support – a system without tiers – simplify 
structures and improve access: by dismantling artificial barriers between services 
by making sure that those bodies that plan and pay for services work together, 
and ensuring that children and young people have easy access to the right 
support from the right service; 

3. Care for the most vulnerable – deliver a clear joined up approach: linking services 
so care pathways are easier to navigate for all children and young people, 
including those who are most vulnerable, so people do not fall between gaps; 

4. Accountability and transparency - harness the power of information: to drive 
improvements in the delivery of care, and standards of performance, and ensure 
we have a much better understanding of how to get the best outcomes for 
children, young people and families/carers and value from our investment. 

5. Developing the workforce - sustain a culture of continuous evidence-based 
service improvement delivered by a workforce with the right mix of skills, 
competencies and experience. 

 
5.7 It is the ambition of the Pan Lancashire plan to ensure equity of services for children 

and young people across Lancashire and work stream leads are working with 
partners to develop and design evidenced based services and pathways for future 
delivery. 
 

5.8 For 2016/ 2017, the transformation of children and young people’s health is one of 
the five mental health priority areas for national assessment and forms part of the 
new Improvement and Assessment Framework for CCGs.  The CCG is required to 
submit quarterly returns via Unify answering the transformational questions. These 
include assurance around readiness for the Eating Disorder Standard due in April 
2017, local spend in line with the allocation provided, plans to show increased 
numbers of children supported and increases in workforce. 
 

5.9 The Pan Lancashire Children and Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing and Mental 
Health Transformation plan forms part of the SDP and is one of the five pan 
Lancashire work stream areas for the Lancashire and South Cumbria Transformation 
Programme.  This is led by Fylde and Wyre CCG’s Chief Commissioning Officer as the 
SRO and a Partnership Board is in place to lead and govern delivery.  
 

5.10 A local partnership board has been established in Blackpool in line with 
developments in all other CCG areas.  The purpose of this group is to facilitate local 
engagement with schools, voluntary sector providers, councils and locally 
commissioned health services both to ensure local delivery of the transformation 
plan but also to enable the local community to influence the pan Lancashire 
developments.  

Page 67



5.11 
 
 
 

A robust action plan has been co-produced with contributions from Better Start, 
Head Start, council services e.g. Youth Offending, and emotional health and 
wellbeing services (CASHER, Connect and CAMHS).  The plan is updated, by 
stakeholders, on a monthly basis.  An additional bespoke action plan has been 
produced with our health based emotional health and wellbeing services.  
 

5.12 A number of key achievements have been made to date. On a pan Lancashire 
footprint: 
 

 Work is ongoing to co-design an evidence based dedicated community eating 
disorder service for our children and young people by March 2017.  A draft 
service specification, pathway and funding model was agreed at the pan 
Lancashire Board in mid-December.  Within Blackpool, a small task and finish 
group, involving representatives from the Council, CCG and NHS providers has 
been established to respond to the service mobilisation plan at a local level. 

 Work is ongoing to develop a 0-19 CAMHS service model.  Project Initiation 
documents have been approved by the Board and by the Collaborative 
Commissioning Board (CCB). 

 Lancashire’s Transformation plan and Lancashire’s Crisis Care Concordat 
identifies an ambition to develop a designated Section 136 facility for children 
and young people. Lancashire has been successful in securing Department of 
Health capital funding to develop these facilities.  No locations have been 
determined at this stage, however the aim is to use the funding to: 

o develop one of more S136 facilities for children and young people 
o improve crisis assessment facilities across Lancashire for children and 

young people 
 

5.13 At a local level: 
 

 National trajectories for access have been set by NHSE to increase access of 
children and young people with a diagnosable Mental Health Condition from 
25% (baseline) to 35% in 2020/21 (70,000 children and young people 
nationally).  From a baseline in 2015/16, incremental year on year increases 
have been identified to reach the target of 35% for 2020/21 – the target for 
2016/17 is 28%; Blackpool CAMHS/Connect Counselling services are currently 
achieving 33.6% (Q’s 1 and 2 2016). 

 As a result of additional funding being released by NHSE, commissioners and 
providers have been able to develop robust plans to reduce waiting times for 
Blackpool CAMHS/Child Psychology by 20% by end of Q4 

 Duty hours (for the provision of emergency paediatric psychosocial 
assessments) within CAMHS have been extended until 4:00pm – Child and 
Adolescent Self Harm Emergency Response Team (CASHER) are on duty at 
5:00pm 

Page 68



 CAMHS have extended their opening hours until 7pm twice a week.  Connect 
Counselling are now opening and offering appointments three evenings a 
week with a twilight drop in starting in January 2017 

 CAMHS ‘Choice’ appointments will be offered in both North and South Shore 
Medical Centre and at YOT offices from January 2017 

 A clinical psychologist for Looked After Children has been recruited to offer 
consultation and support to social workers working with our children who are 
experiencing emotional or mental health difficulties.  A second post, currently 
out for recruitment, will offer direct support for our children and young 
people 

 Connect Counselling CLA post  

 Connect Counselling  are now offering counselling support to the children’s 
diabetic clinic  

 Two CAMHS Transformation Champions have been identified within our 
CAMHS service and have completed two days training funded by Health 
Education England 

 Two Primary Mental Health Workers (PMHW) are in post with Blackpool 
CAMHS.  This role acts as a named contact in CAMHS for all schools and GPs 
and supports professionals to identify a child’s mental health needs and 
consider appropriate ways of meeting their needs.  They will work with staff 
in universal services and directly intervene when a child has not responded to 
the measures undertaken by the staff, if the intervention is likely to be short 
term and the level of need does not warrant intervention by specialist 
CAMHS.  The PMHW will work alongside colleagues in Headstart to provide 
training programmes for professionals working with children to increase and 
build on their understanding of mental health issues.  

 A CAMHS patient experience survey has been completed – 77% of 
respondents said that they were very satisfied/satisfied with the care 
delivered by the service 

 Engagement events are being held on a regular basis with ‘Breaking the Cycle’ 
(anti bullying group)  

 CASHER self harm support follow up will commence in Spring 2017 
 

5.14 Locally, our next steps are to: 
 

 Understand the impact of social media and growth of sexting on children and 
young people’s mental health 

 Understand provision across Blackpool and map against the THRIVE model 

 Review of single point of access for CAMHS, child psychology and Connect 
Counselling 

 Develop a more permanent response for children and young people 
presenting out of hours in Accident and Emergency (across the Fylde Coast) 

 Roll out ‘learning disabilities passport’ across hospital to support children and 

Page 69



young people with a learning disability, and their families, when they are 
admitted 

 Continue to implement actions from Year 1 of the plan 
 Continue to work with our health based emotional health and wellbeing 

services to implement the bespoke action plan 

 
 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 

 
No 

 List of Appendices 
 

 

 None. 
 

 

6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

None. 

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

None. 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None. 

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

None. 

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 None. 
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None. 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

None. 

13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 None. 
 

Page 70



 

Report to: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD  
 

Relevant Officer: Scott Butterfield, Corporate Development and Research 
Manager 

Relevant Cabinet Member: 
 

Councillor Graham Cain, Cabinet Secretary (Resilient 
Communities)   

Date of Meeting: 
 

18 January 2017 

 

DRAFT FORWARD PLAN 
 
1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To inform the Health and Wellbeing Board members of the draft Forward Plan that 
has been developed for the Board. 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 
 

That Board Members consider the draft Forward Plan and advise of any forthcoming 
initiatives, projects, policy developments and any other agenda items from individual 
organisations that are of interest to and are the business of the Board. 
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 
 
 
 

In order to maintain a strategic oversight of the health and wellbeing agenda and 
ensure that the Board fulfils its statutory duties, a draft Forward Plan has been 
developed. This will enable the Board to strategically plan its future agendas and 
ensure that items are aligned to and relevant to the delivery of the Board’s priorities.  
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the 
Council? 
 

 No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 None. 
 

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is “Creating stronger communities and increasing 
resilience.”   

Page 71

Agenda Item 10



 
5.0 Background Information 

 
5.1 In order to maintain a strategic oversight of the health and wellbeing agenda and 

ensure that the Board fulfils its statutory duties, a draft Forward Plan has been 
developed. This will enable the Board to strategically plan its future agendas and 
ensure that items are aligned to and relevant to the delivery of the Board’s priorities. 
This plan was agreed at the meeting of the Board held on the 15 July 2015 and has 
been reviewed at all meetings since then and it is intended that it will be reviewed at 
all future meetings to give the Board oversight of its work plan. 
 

5.2 
 
 

At the Strategic Commissioning Group away day on 1 July 2015, the link between the 
Health and Wellbeing Board and Strategic Commissioning Group was discussed. In 
order to maintain the relationship between the Board and Strategic Commissioning 
Group, and ensure that there is alignment between the Strategic Commissioning 
Group’s commissioning priorities and the Board’s strategic priorities, the draft 
Forward Plan will be included as a standing item at the Strategic Commissioning 
Group to enable relevant items from the Strategic Commissioning Group to be added 
on a regular basis for discussion and ratification. 
 

 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 

 List of Appendices 
 

 

 Appendix 10(a) - Draft Forward Plan 
 

 

6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

None. 
 

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

None. 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None. 
 

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

None. 
 

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

Page 72



10.1 None. 
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 None. 
 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

None. 

13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 
 

None. 
 

 
  
 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



 Appendix 10(a) 

(Draft) Health and Wellbeing Board Forward Plan 2016 – 17  

BOARD MEETING BOARD BUSINESS ITEMS THEMED DEBATE DEADLINE FOR REPORTS 

Wednesday 
18 January 2017 
3.00 – 5.00pm 

 

Formal SUB-GROUP UPDATES 
 
1. Strategic Commissioning Group 

update 
 
BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
2. Healthy Weight Summit update 

 
3. Better Care Fund six month update 

  
4. Fylde Coast HWB Partnership  
 
5. Sustainability and Transformation 

Plan (STP) update 
 
6. 0-19 public health offer 

 
7. CYP Emotional Health and 

Wellbeing Transformation Plan 
update  

 

 
 
 

All finalised reports to be sent to 
Lennox Beattie by 12 noon on 
Wednesday 4 January 2017 

  

P
age 75



 

BOARD MEETING BOARD BUSINESS ITEMS THEMED DEBATE DEADLINE FOR REPORTS 

Wednesday 
1 March 2017 
3.00 – 5.00pm 

 

Formal SUB-GROUP UPDATES 
 
1. Strategic Commissioning Group 

update 
 
2. Health Protection Forum update 

 
BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
3. Housing Plan for the Ageing 

Population  
 

4. HWB Strategy six month progress 
update 
 

5. Vanguard/Accountable Care 

System 

 

 

All finalised reports to be sent to 
Lennox Beattie by 12 noon on 
Wednesday 18 February 2017 

 

  

P
age 76



BOARD MEETING BOARD BUSINESS ITEMS THEMED DEBATE DEADLINE FOR REPORTS 

Wednesday 
19 April 2017 
3.00 – 5.00pm 

 

Formal SUB-GROUP UPDATES 
 

Strategic Commissioning Group update 
 

BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

1. Healthwatch  

 

 

All finalised reports to be sent to 
Lennox Beattie by 12 noon on 
Wednesday 5 April 2017 

 

P
age 77



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 19 OCTOBER 2016
	3 STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING GROUP (SCG) UPDATE
	Appendix 3(a) - SCG Notes and Actions 19 October 16

	4 BETTER CARE FUND SIX MONTH UPDATE
	Appendix 4(a) - BCF Qtr 2 monitoring report- SCG 090117 V2

	5 PAN-LANCASHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS
	Appendix 5(a) - Timescales for implementation
	Appendix 5(b) - Local Health and Wellbeing Board Terms of Reference
	Appendix 5(c) - Pan-Lancs HWBB Terms of Reference draft v1 1

	6 LANCASHIRE AND SOUTH CUMBRIA CHANGE PROGRAMME AND SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME UPDATE
	7 REVIEW OF PARTNERSHIPS AND FORUMS
	Appendix 7(a) - Governance Diagram HWB-BSCB-BSafe v7

	8 UPDATE ON 0-5 CHILDREN'S PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES (ENHANCED HEALTH VISITING MODEL) 2017-2018
	Appendix 8(a) - EHCP HWB Report

	9 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S EMOTIONAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING TRANSFORMATION PLAN
	10 FORWARD PLAN
	Appendix 10(a) - Draft HWB Forward Plan 2016-17 updated 6 Dec


